
SCHEDULED COMMITTEE MEETINGS to be held in the Multi-Purpose Room #236, second floor of the City 
Administration Building, 201 Spring Street: 

• Monday. April 4th. 5:30p.m. Is the next Committee meetings. 

5:55p.m. 

6:00p.m. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

• Committee agendas will be available on Friday, April 1st, 2016. 

SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, MARCH 22nd, 2016 

Pre Meeting Activities 

Pledge of Allegiance 
Invocation - RICK CULVER 

OFFICIAL AGENDA 

Large Print agendas are available at the back of the room, next to the main entrance. 

Call to Order- Ernest Cate, City Attorney 

Roll Call - Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

Recognition of a Quorum. 

4. Election of President Pro Tempore 

5. Comments from Citizens 

The Council will hear brief comments from citizens during 
this period on issues not on the agenda. No action will be 
taken tonight. All comments will be taken under 
advisement. 

6. Approval of Minutes 

a) March 8th, 2016 (3-10) 

7. Procedural Motions 

A. Entertain Motion to read all Ordinances and Resolutions by title only. 

B. Entertain Motion to dispense with the rule requiring that ordinances be fully and 
distinctly read on three (3) different days for ordinances listed on this agenda as item 
numbers .... 9 & 13c (Motion must be approved by two-thirds (2/3) of the council 
members). 

8. Public Hearing on petition to vacate a portion of a public street; Riviera Drive 

9. An Ordinance vacating a portion of a dedicated public street known as Riviera Drive, 
pursuant to Ark. Code §14-301-301, et seq.; declaring an emergency and for other 
purposes, presented by Ernest Cate, City Attorney. (11-13) 

1 0. A Resolution expressing support for the Arkansas State Highway and Transportation 
Department to rename the "Springdale Northern Bypass" the John Tilman Hussey 
Memorial Highway, presented by Ernest Cate, City Attorney & members of FOP. (14) 

11. Street & CIP Committee Report and Recommendations by Chairman Rick Evans: 

A. A Resolution expressing the willingness of the City of Springdale to utilize federal 
aid funds for the following City project- Don Tyson Parkway Extension. With 
committee recommended approval. (15) 

B. A Resolution authorizing the execution of an engineering services contract for the 
design of roadway lighting for the Elm Springs Road Bridge at 149. With committee 
recommended approval. (16-28) 



12. Parks & Recreation Committee Report and Recommendations by Chairman Mike 
Lawson: 

A Resolution expressing the willingness of the City of Springdale to utilize federal aid 
funds for the following projects- Dean's Trail. (29-57) 

13. Planning Commission Report and Recommendations by Patsy Christie, Director of 
Planning: 

A. A Resolution approving a Waiver of Street Improvements, Drainage, Curbs, 
Gutters, and Sidewalks as set forth in Ordinance No. 3725 to Riggins Construction 
in connection with 6733 Sunset Ridge, a single family dwelling. (58-59) 

B. A Resolution approving a conditional use as set forth in Ordinance No. 4030. 
(Property located at 102 Woodcliff Road.) (60-61) 

C. An Ordinance amending ordinance No. 3307 being the Zoning Ordinance of the 
City of Springdale, Arkansas, and the plat pertaining thereto by rezoning 2.5 ±acres 
belonging to Mancia Properties, LLC located at 701 N. Thompson from General 
Commercial District (C-2) to Thoroughfare Commercial District (C-5) and declaring 
an emergency. (62-64) 

14. Comments from Department Heads. 

15. Comments from Council Members. 

16. Comments from City Attorney. 

17. Adjournment. 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCU, 
MARCH 8, 2016 

The City Council of the City of Springdale met in regular session on March 8, 2016, in 
the City Council Chambers, City Administration Building. Mayor Sprouse called the 
meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Roll call was answered by: 

Doug Sprouse 
Rick Culver 
Jeff Watson 
Mike Overton 
Eric Ford 
Mike Lawson 
Rick Evans 
Jim Reed 
Kathy Jaycox 
EmestCate 
Denise Pearce 

Department heads present: 

Patsy Christie 
Mike Peters 
Mike Irwin 
Sam Goade 
Mike Chamlee 
Bill Mock 
Brad Baldwin 
Courtney Kremer 
Gina Lewis 
Allyn Lord 
MarkGutte 

COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS 

Mayor 
Ward3 
Ward3 
Ward2 
Ward 1 
Ward4 
Ward2 
Ward 1 
Ward4 
City Attorney 
City Clerk/Treasurer 

Planning & Comm. Dev. Director 
Police Chief 
Fire Chief 
Public Works Director 
Buildings Director 
Parks & Recreation Director 
Engineering Director 
Animal Services Director 
Human Resources Director 
Shiloh Museum Director 
IT Director 

Dave Stevens, 711 W. Johnson, introduced himself and said he was at the meeting to see 
how the City Council meetings are operated. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Alderman Jaycox moved the minutes of the February 23, 2016 and February 26, 2016 
City Council meetings be approved as presented. Alderman Reed made the second. 

There was a voice vote of all ayes and no nays. 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS READ BY TITLE ONLY 

Alderman Reed made the motion to read all Ordinances and Resolutions by title only and 
to dispense with the rule requiring that ordinances be fully and distinctly read on three (3) 
different days for all items listed on this agenda. Alderman Jaycox made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Culver, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson 

No: None 

~ 
=... 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 8, 2016 

RECOGNITION OF LAND DONATION BY JAMES AND BRENDA SKELTON 

Mayor Sprouse recognized James and Brenda Skelton who donated land to the City of 
Springdale which will be used for the Razorback Greenway located off Pump Station 
Road and Stultz Road. 

CITIZENS AWARD BY FIRE CHIEF MIKE IRWIN 

Fire Chief Mike Irwin recognized Dan Pearson and Genna Tyner who on Sunday, 
February 28, 2016, gave CPR to a citizen in the Denny's parking lot helping to save the 
person's life. They were awarded the 11Good Samaritan Award" by the Springdale Fire 
Department for their selfless act of kindness. 

ORDINANCE NO. 5019 - ANNEXING 15.26 ACRES OWNED BY JAN AND 
JUDITH SETH LOCATED SOUTH OF WEST WAGON WHEEL ROAD AND EAST 
OF DRAKE ROAD (BENTON COUNTY) 

City Attorney Ernest Cate presented an Ordinance annexing 15.26 acres owned by Jan 
and Judith Seth located south of West Wagon Wheel Road and East of Drake Road 
(Benton County). 

After reading the title of the Ordinance, Alderman Reed moved the Ordinance "Do Pass". 
Alderman Jaycox made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Reed, Jaycox, Culver, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans 

No: None 

Alderman Reed moved the Emergency Clause be adopted. Alderman Evans made the 
second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Jaycox, Culver, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, 

No: None 

The Ordinance was numbered 5019. 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-16 - APPROVING A WAIVER OF STREET 
IMPROVEMENTS, DRAINAGE, CURBS, GUTTERS AND SIDEWALKS AS SET 
FORTH IN ORDINANCE NO. 3725 TO MARIBELL GOCHI IN CONNECTION WITH 
3304 BRANDY, A SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING 

Planning Director Patsy Christie presented a Resolution approving a waiver of street 
improvements, drainage, curbs, gutters and sidewalks as set forth in Ordinance No. 3725 
to Maribell Gochi in connection with 3304 Brandy, a single family dwelling. 

Ordinance #304 7 provides for the waiver of street improvements, drainage relating 
thereto, curbs, gutters and sidewalks to be first heard by the Planning Commission and a 
recommendation made to the City Council, with any waivers to be granted by the City 
Council only. 

The proposed Resolution provides for four options to consider, either Option 1 to grant 
waiver, Option 2 to deny waiver, Option 3 to approve payment in lieu of improvements or 
Option 4 to deny waiver and allow Bill of Assurance. 

""" ~ 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 8, 2016 

Alderman Reed moved the Resolution be adopted with Option 1. Alderman Evans made 
the second. 

RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A WAIVER OF 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS, DRAINAGE, CURBS, 
GUTTERS AND SIDEWALKS AS SET FORTH IN 
ORDINANCE NO. 3725 TO MARIBELL GOCHI IN 
CONNECTION WITH 3304 BRANDY, A SINGLE 
FAMILY DWELLING 

WHEREAS, Ordinance #304 7 provides for the waiver of street improvements, 
drainage relating thereto, curbs, gutters and sidewalks to be first heard by the Planning 
Commission and a recommendation made to the City Council, with any waivers to be 
granted by the City Council only; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a request for waiver of street 
improvements to Brandy Lane including drainage improvements related thereto, 
sidewalks in connection with 3304 Brandy a single family dwelling for Maribell Gochi 
and the Planning Commission recommends approval of the waiver request. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, that the City Council hereby: 

Option 1: Grants a waiver of street improvements to Brandy Lane including 
drainage improvements related thereto, sidewalks in connection with 3304 Brandy Lane, 
a single family dwelling. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS_ DAY OF MARCH, 2016. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

---------Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest Cate, City Attorney 

The vote: 

Yes: Culver, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox 

No: None 

The Resolution was numbered 20-16. 

ORDINANCE NO. 5020 - AMENDING SECTION 112-11 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES (VARIANCE AND WAIVER REGULATIONS) 

Planning Director Patsy Christie presented an Ordinance amending Section 112-11 of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, and for other purposes. 

I() 

~ 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 8, 2016 

.. 
Chapter 112 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, contains the 
procedures for the subdivision of land in the City of Springdale. Section 112-11 of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, contains the regulations 
pertaining to variances and waivers from the requirements of Chapter 112. 

Section 112-11 needs to be amended to streamline the waiver process when a payment in 
lieu of improvements or a bill of assurance is utilized. 

A public hearing was held before the Springdale Planning Commission on March 1, 
2016. 

After reading the title of the Ordinance, Alderman Reed moved the Ordinance "Do Pass". 
Alderman Jaycox made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Culver 

No: None 

The Ordinance was numbered 5020. 

ORDINANCE NO. 5021- AMENDIG ARTICLE 6, SECTION 3.3 AND SECTION 3.10 
OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE. ARKANSAS, 
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES (PERTAINING TO THE SCREENING OF 
COMMERCIAL BUSINESSES) 

Planning Director Patsy Christie presented an Ordinance amending Article 6, Section 3.3 
and Section 3.10 of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, and for 
other purposes. This section pertains to the screening of commercial businesses and 
needs to be amended to clarify the types of materials which may and may not be used. 
This change covers Section 3.3 - Use Unit 22 (Automotive Services) and Use Unit 41 
(Automobile Sales) and Section 3.10 - Screening of commercial businesses. 

A public hearing was held before the Springdale Planning Commission on March 1, 
2016. 

After reading the title of the Ordinance, Alderman Evans moved the Ordinance "Do 
Pass". Alderman Ford made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Culver, Watson 

No: None 

The Ordinance was numbered 5021. 

ORDINANCE NO. 5022 - AMENDING SECTION 56-38(B) OF THE __ CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE. ARKANSAS, AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES (PERTAINING TO REGULATIONS REGARDING LANDSCAPING 
AND BUFFERS) 

Planning Director Patsy Christie presented an Ordinance amending Section 56-38(b) of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, and for other purposes, 
pertaining to regulations regarding landscaping and buffers. Section 56-38 contains the 
regulations regarding screening between incompatible uses and the types of allowable 

'IQ 

~ 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 8, 2016 

screening that may be used. This change will specify those materials which may or may 
not be used. 

After reading the title of the Ordinance, Alderman Reed moved the Ordinance "Do Pass". 
Alderman Evans made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Culver, Watson, Overton 

No: None 

The Ordinance was numbered 5022. 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-16- AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO 
EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE SANDERS A VENUE 
TRAILHEAD PROJECT (CP#1202-AHTD#040658) AND ESTABLISHING A 
BUDGET 

Planning Director Patsy Christie presented a Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute a construction contract with JLA Enterprises Inc. for the Sanders 
Avenue Trailhead Project (CP#1202-AHTD#040658) and establishing a budget. This is a 
$400,000 grant and the match for this grant came through an anonymous donation for the 
purchase of land at Sanders A venue. This will be the third and final trailhead in the City 
of Springdale. 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 
AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE A 
CONSTRUCfiON CONTRACT FOR THE SANDERS 
AVE. TRAILHEAD PROJECT (CP #1202; AHTD 
#040658) AND ESTABLISHING A BUDGET 

WHEREAS, the Northwest Arkansas Regional Planning Commission 
(NW ARPC) received and accepted a Federal-Aid Transportation, Community and System 
Preservation {TCSP) Grant in the amount of $400,000 for the construction of a trailhead 
at Sanders Ave. on the Razorback Greenway, and 

WHEREAS, by Resolution #35-15 the City of Springdale entered into an 
agreement with NW ARPC to provide the match for the project; administer the 
construction contract and maintain the trailhead upon completion; and, 

WHEREAS, bids were opened for the project on February 11, 2016, with the low 
bidder being JLA Construction with a bid of$445,103.25. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the Mayor and City Clerk are 
hereby authorized to execute a contract with JLA Construction in the amount of 
$445,103.25 for construction of the Sanders Ave. Trailhead on the Razorback Greenway 
upon award concurrence by the Arkansas Highway and Transportation Department. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __ day of March, 2016. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

I' 
~ 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 8, 2016 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

Alderman Reed moved the Resolution be adopted. Alderman Jaycox made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Culver, Watson, Overton, Ford 

No: None 

The Resolution was numbered 21-16. 

ORDINANCE NO. 5023 - AUTHORIZING THE CITY CLERK TO FILE A CLEAN
UP LIEN FOR THE REMOVAL OF OVERGORNW BRUSH AND DEBRIS ON 
PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, WASHINGTON 
COUNTY, ARKANSAS 

City Attorney Ernest Cate presented an Ordinance authorizing the City Clerk to file a 
clean-up lien for the removal of overgrown brush and debris located at 197 Casteel Lane 
within the City of Springdale, Washington County, Arkansas. 

After reading the title of the Ordinance, Alderman Reed moved the Ordinance "Do Pass". 
Alderman Lawson made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Culver, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson 

No: None 

Alderman Evans moved the Emergency Clause be adopted. Alderman Reed made the 
second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Reed, Jaycox, Culver, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans 

No: None 

The Ordinance was numbered 5023. 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-16- ENDORSING PARTICIPATION OF TYSON SHARED 
SERVICES, INC., IN THE SALES AND USE TAX REFUND PROGRAM 
AUTHORIZED BY THE CONSOLIDATED INCENTIVE ACT OF 2003 AND ARK. 
CODE ANN. §15-4-2706(d) 

City Attorney Ernest Cate presented a Resolution endorsing participation of Tyson Shared 
Services, Inc. in the Sales and Use Tax Refund Program authorized by the Consolidated 
Incentive Act of2003 and Arkansas Code Annotated §15-4-2706(d). 

oc 
~ 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 8, 2016 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION ENDORSING PARTICIPATION OF TYSON 
SHARED SERVICES, INC., IN THE SALES AND USE TAX 
REFUND PROGRAM AUTHORIZED BY THE CONSOLIDATED 
INCENTIVE ACT OF 2003 AND ARK. CODE ANN. §15-4-2706(d) 

WHEREAS, in order for a business to be eligible for the investment tax 
incentives contained in Ark. Code Ann. §15-4-2706(d), the governing body of the 
municipality in which the business is located must pass a resolution endorsing the 
participation of the business in the tax refund program; and 

WHEREAS, Ark. Code Ann. §15-4-2706(d) provides that the governing body of 
the municipality must specify that the Department of Finance and Administration is 
authorized to refund local sales taxes to a business participating in the tax refund 
program; and 

WHEREAS, Tyson Shared Services, Inc., located at 2200 Don Tyson Parkway, 
wishes to participate in, and be eligible for, the investment tax incentives contained in 
Ark. Code Ann. §15-4-2706(d), due to the expansion of its facility in the City of 
Springdale, Arkansas; and 

WHEREAS, Tyson Shared Services, Inc., has agreed to furnish the City of 
Springdale all information necessary for its participation in the tax refund program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the participation of Tyson Shared 
Services, Inc., in the tax refund program contained in Ark. Code Ann. §15-4-2706(d) is 
hereby endorsed, and the Department of Finance and Administration is authorized to 
refund local sales taxes to Tyson Shared Services, Inc., and this resolution shall take 
effect immediately. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __ day ofMarch, 2016. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, CITY ATTORNEY 

Alderman Reed moved the Resolution be adopted. Alderman Jaycox made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Jaycox, Culver, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed 

No: None 

The Resolution was numbered 22-10. 

=-~ 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 8, 2016 

BLUFF CEMETEE,Y ANNUAL CLEANUP 

Public Works Director Sam Goade announced the annual clean-up ofBluffCemetery will 
be started soon in preparation for mowing. Items will be removed. Anything of 
significant value will be tagged and kept for a while if the owner wants to pick up items. 

"STATE OF THE CITY" ADDRESS BY MAYOR DOUG SPROUSE 

Mayor Doug Sprouse gave his "State of the City" address following City 
Council business. (Tape on file) 

ADJOURNMENT 

Alderman Jaycox made the motion to adjourn. Alderman Reed made the second. 

After a voice vote of all ayes and no nays, the meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk/Treasurer 

= ...-'i 
~ 



ORDINANCE NO. __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING A 
PORTION OF A DEDICATED 
PUBLIC STREET, KNOWN AS 
RIVIERA DRIVE, PURSUANT TO 
ARK. CODE ANN. §14~301~301, et seq.; 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; 
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

WHEREAS, a petition was duly filed with the City Council of the City of Springdale, 
Arkansas asking the City of Springdale to vacate and abandon a portion of a dedicated public 
street described as follows (a map of the area to be vacated is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and 
is incorporated herein by reference): 

A 35' wide street right of way lying South of Lot 6 and North of Lot 5 of Dill 
Addition to the City of Springdale as per the Subdivision Plat on file in Plat Book 
3 at Page 314 in the Courthouse of Washington County, Arkansas, said right of 
way being more particularly described as follows: Beginning at the NE Corner of 
said Lot 5 and running thence along the North line thereofN 88°43'40"W 105.31' 
to the NW corner of said Lot 5, thence along the West line of said Dill Addition 
N01°19'17"E 35.00' to the SW Corner of said Lot 6, thence along the South line 
thereofS88°43'40"E 105.28' to theSE Corner of said Lot 6, thence along the East 
line of said Dill Addition SOl 0 l6'10"W 35.00' to the point of beginning, 
containing 0.08 acres, more· or less. 

WHEREAS, after due notice as required by law, the City Council has, at the time and 
place mentioned in the notice, heard all persons desiring to be heard on the question and has 
ascertained that the portion of the street herein described has heretofore been dedicated to the 
public use for a street; 

WHEREAS, all property owners abutting the portion of the street to be vacated have 
filed with the Council their written consent to the abandonment and vacating of the portion of the 
street herein described; and 

WHEREAS, public interest and welfare will not be adversely affected by the 
abandonment of the portion of the street herein described. 

EmestCa/20 16Misc/ORDvacRiviera 

...-( 

...-( 

~ 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that: 

Section 1: That the City of Springdale, Arkansas, hereby releases, vacates and abandons 
all its right-of-way interests, with the rights of the public generally, in and to a portion of a 
dedicated public street described hereinabove. 

Section 2: A copy of this Ordinance, duly certified by the City Clerk, shall be filed in the 
office of the Recorder ofWashington County, Arkansas, and recorded in the Deed records of the 
County. 

Section 3: The Council further finds that pursuant to Arkansas law, upon abandonment 
of this right-of-way, the ownership of the property where the right-of-way is located as shown on 
the plat, shall vest in the owners of the real estate abutting thereon, with each such abutting 
owner taking title to the center line of the right-of-way so abandoned, and the ownership shall be 
free from the easement of the City for public use as a street. Provided, however, that the City of 
Springdale will retain the rights of any utility/drainage easements which may exist across this 
property. 

Section 4: Emergency Clause. It is hereby declared that an emergency exists and this 
ordinance, being necessary for the preservation of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of 
Springdale, Arkansas, shall be in effect immediately upon its passage and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 22nd day of March, 2016. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, CITY ATTORNEY 

EmestCa/20 16Misc/ORDvacRiviera 

N 
~ 

~ 



..=-::.= _-_-_-_-_._-
-·~-_______ ; 

---== ~-~-~--.-:--- --·-~ --- ------ ,_....,....,. 
--· ---· _._ ...... ~~8 SV'I~ 

----·-
.--. .-•• ~I 

P13 



RESOLUTION NO. _ _ _ 

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING SUPPORT FOR THE 
ARKANSAS STATE HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION 
DEPARTMENT TO RENAME THE "SPRINGDALE 
NORTHERN BYPASS" THE JOHN TILMAN HUSSEY 
MEMORIAL HIGHWAY. 

WHEREAS, the Arkansas State Highway and Transportation Department has 
undertaken a project known as the "Springdale Northern Bypass", part of which is currently 
under construction; 

WHEREAS, on December 21, 1975, Springdale police officer John Tilman Hussey gave 
his life in the line of duty while protecting the citizens of the City of Springdale, Arkansas; 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, to 
honor the service and life of Officer Hussey, and to honor the service of all those law 
enforcement officers who devote their time, talent, and lives to serve the citizens of the City of 
Springdale, Arkansas; 

WHEREAS, the City Council far the City of Springdale, Arkansas, would like to express 
its support to the Arkansas State Highway and Transportation Department to rename the 
"Springdale Northern Bypass" the John Tilman Hussey Memorial Highway. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the City Council for the City of Springdale, 
Arkansas, hereby expresses its desire that the Arkansas State Highway and Transportation 
Department rename the "Springdale Northern Bypass" the John Tilman Hussey Memorial 
Highway, and that a copy of this Resolution be sent to Mr. Scott E. Bennetl;, Director of the 
Arkansas State Highway and Transportation Department. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __ day of , 2016. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED: 

Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

EmcstCaflOlSMisc:IRESObussey 

~ 
~ 

~ 



RESOLUTION NO.-----

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE WILLINGNESS OF 
THE CITY 0}' SPRINGDALE 

TO UTILIZE FEDERAL-AID FUNDS 
FOR THE FOLLOWING CITY PROJECT: 

Don Tvson Parkway Extension 

WHEREAS, the Northwest Arkansas Regional Planning Commission has recently 
approved Federal-aid Swface Transportation Program Attributable (STP A) funds for the project 
at the following Federal and City participating ratios, up to the maximum Federal-aid available: 

Type Work Work Phase Federal% City% 

Construction of City Projects Preliminary Engineering 80 20 
Right-of-Way 80 20 

Utilities 80 20 
Construction 80 20 

Construction Engineering 80 20 

City projects programmed but not 
All Phases -0- 100 let to contract 

"-· -

WHEREAS, the currently apprcved funds are to be used for preliminary engineering 
including the environmental studies, and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
FOR THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, THAT: 

SECTION I: The City will participate in accordance with its designated responsibilities 
in this project. 

SECTION II: The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute 
all appropriate agreements and contracts necessary to expedite the design and environmental 
review of this City project. 

SECTION III: The City pledges its full support and hereby authorizes the Arkansas 
State Highway and Transportation Department to initiate action to implement this project. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of March, 2016. 

ATTEST: 
Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

., 

..... 
~ 



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 
ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT FOR DESIGN OF 
ROADWAY LIGHTING FOR THE ELM SPRINGS ROAD 

BRIDGE AT I49 

WHEREAS, in March, 2014 the City of Springdale agreed to participate in 
the cost of bridge widening at the Elm Spring Road interchange on 149, 

WHEREAS, funds were pledged in an amount up to $1 million, 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale would like to add roadway lighting to 
the bridge that is consistent with the City's lighting standards, 

WHEREAS, Crafton, Tull & Associates, Inc. is the AHTD design 
engineering consultant for the bridge widening project and the AHTD is not 
providing funds for the design of the bridge lighting; 

WHEREAS, Crafton, Tull & Associates, Inc. has submitted a proposed 
contract for the design of the roadway lighting for the Elm Springs Road bridge at 
149 for a lump sum amount not to exceed $11,500.00; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
FOR THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the Mayor and City 
Clerk are hereby authorized to execute an engineering services contract with 
Crafton, Tull & Associates, Inc. for design of roadway lighting for the Elm 
Springs Road bridge at 149 to be paid from Capital Improvement funds. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of March, 2016 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

loC 
~ 

~ 



® 
SHORT FORM OF AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of --------------------------------- ("Effective Date") between 

City of Springdale, Arkansas ("Owner'') 

and Crafton, Tull & Associates, Inc. ("Engineer") 

Engineer agrees to provide the services described below to Owner for Elm Springs Road Bridge Lighting ("Project"). 

Description of Engineer's Services: See attached scope of work. 

Street Address of Property*: 

Owner and Engineer further agree as follows: 

1.01 Basic Agreement 

A. Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, 
the services set forth in this Agreement, and Owner shall 
pay Engineer for such Services as set forth in 
Paragraph 9.01. 

2.01 Payment Procedures 

A. Preparation of Invoices. Engineer will prepare 
invoices in accordance with Engineer's standard invoicing 
practices and submit the invoices to Owner. 

B. Payment of Invoices. Invoices are due and 
payable upon receipt*. If Owner fails to make any 
payment due Engineer for services and expenses within 
30 days after receipt of Engineer's invoice, the amounts 
due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per 
month (or the maximum rate of interest pennitted by law, 

1 of4 

if less) from said thirtieth day. In addition, Engineer may, 
without liability, after giving seven days written notice to 
Owner, suspend services under this Agreement until 
Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for 
services, expenses, and other related charges. Payments 
will be credited first to interest and then to principal. 

C. Lien Rights*. The Owner understands that the 
Engineer is entitled to a lien against the property if not 
paid in full for services provided to improve the property. 
The Owner understands that this lien can be enforced by 
the sale of the property if necessary. 

• This is a change from the standard EJCDC E-520 form. 

3 .01 Additional Services 

A. If authorized by Owner, or if required because 
of changes in the Project, Engineer shall furnish services 
in addition to those set forth above. 

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 
Copyright Cl:l 2002 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

r-
~ 

~ 



B. Owner shall pay Engineer for such additional 
services as follows: For additional services ofEngineer's 
employees engaged directly on the Project an amount 
equal to the cumulative hours charged to the Project by 
each class of Engineer's employees times standard hourly 
rates for each applicable billing class; plus reimbursable 
expenses and Engineer's consultants' charges, if any. 

4.01 Termination 

A. The obligation to provide further services under 
this Agreement may be terminated: 

1. For cause, 

2 of4 

a. By either party upon 30 days written 
notice in the event of substantial failure by the 
other party to perform in accordance with the 
Agreement's terms through no fault of the 
terminating party. 

b. By Engineer: 

upon seven days written notice if 
Engineer believes that Engineer is being 
requested by Owner to furnish or perform 
services contrary to Engineer's 
responsibilities as a licensed professional; 
or 

upon seven days written notice if the 
Engineer's services for the Project are 
delayed or suspended for more than 90 
days for reasons beyond Engineer's 
control. 

Engineer shall have no liability to Owner 
on account of such termination. 

c. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this 
Agreement will not terminate as a result 
of a substantial failure under 
paragraph 4.0l.A.l.a if the party receiving 
such notice begins, within seven days of 
receipt of such notice, to correct its failure 
and proceeds diligently to cure such 
failure within no more than 30 days of 
receipt of notice; provided, however, that 
if and to the extent such substantial failure 
cannot be reasonably cured within such 30 
day period, and if such party has 
diligently attempted to cure the same and 
thereafter continues diligently to cure the 
same, then the cure period provided for 
herein shall extend up to, but in no case 

more than, 60 days after the date of 
receipt of the notice. 

2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon the 
receipt of notice by Engineer. 

B. The terminating party under paragraphs 
4.0l.A.l or 4.0l.A.2 may set the effective date of 
termination at a time up to 30 days later than otherwise 
provided to allow Engineer to demobilize personnel and 
equipment from the Project site, to complete tasks whose 
value would otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the 
status of completed and uncompleted tasks, and to 
assemble Project materials in orderly files. 

5.01 Controlling Law 

A. This Agreement is to be governed by the law of 
the state in which the Project is located. 

6.01 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries 

A. Owner and Engineer each is hereby bound and 
the partners, successors, executors, administrators, and 
legal representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the 
extent permitted by paragraph 6.0l.B the assigns of 
Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound to the other party 
to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, 
executors, administrators, and legal representatives (and 
said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations of this 
Agreement. 

B. Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, 
or transfer any rights under or interest (including, but 
without limitation, moneys that are due or may become 
due) in this Agreement without the written consent of the 
other, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting, 
or transfer is mandated or restricted by law. Unless 
specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent 
to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge 
the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this 
Agreement. 

7.01 General Considerations 

A. The standard of care for all professional 
engineering and related services performed or furnished 
by Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and 
skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession 
practicing under similar circumstances at the same time 
and in the same locality. Engineer makes no warranties, 
express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in 
connection with Engineer's services. Engineer and its 
consultants may use or rely upon the design services of 

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 
Copyright© 2002 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

QC 
....-! 
~ 



others, including, but not limited to, contractors, 
manufacturers, and suppliers. 

B. Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, 
or have control over any contractor's work, nor shall 
Engineer have authority over or responsibility for the 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of 
construction selected or used by any contractor, for safety 
precautions and programs incident to a contractor's work 
progress, nor for any failure of any contractor to comply 
with laws and regulations applicable to contractor's work. 

C. Engineer neither guarantees the performance of 
any contractor nor assumes responsibility for any 
contractor's failure to furnish and perform its work in 
accordance with the contract between Owner and such 
contractor. 

D. Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts 
or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, or supplier, 
or of any contractor's agents or employees or any other 
persons (except Engineer's own employees) at the Project 
site or otherwise furnishing or performing any of 
construction work; or for any decision made on 
interpretations or clarifications of the construction 
contract given by Owner without consultation and advice 
of Engineer. 

E. The general conditions for any construction 
contract documents prepared hereWlder are to be the 
"Standard General Conditions of the Construction 
Contract@ as prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract 
Documents Committee (No. C-700, 2002 Edition). 

F. All design documents prepared or furnished by 
Engineer are instruments of service, and Engineer retains 
an ownership and property interest (including the 
copyright and the right of reuse) in such documents, 
whether or not the Project is completed. 

G. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner 
and Engineer (1) waive against each other, and the other's 
employees, officers, directors, agents, insurers, partners, 
and consultants, any and all claims for or entitlement to 
special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages 
arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the 
Project, and (2) agree that Engineer's total liability to 
Owner under this Agreement shall be limited to $50,000 
or the total amount of compensation received by 
Engineer, whichever is greater. 

H. The parties acknowledge that Engineer's scope 
of services does not include any services related to a 
Hazardous Environmental Condition (the presence of 
asbestos, PCBs, petroleum, hazardous substances or 
waste, and radioactive materials). If Engineer or any other 

3 of4 

party encounters a Hazardous Environmental Condition, 
Engineer may, at its option and without liability for 
consequential or any other damages, suspend performance 
of services on the portion of the Project affected thereby 
until Owner: (i) retains appropriate specialist consultants 
or contractors to identify and, as appropriate, abate, 
remediate, or remove the Hazardous Environmental 
Condition; and (ii) warrants that the Site is in full 
compliance with applicable Laws and Regulations. 

I. Files in electronic media format of text, data, 
graphics, or other types that are furnished by the Engineer 
to the Owner or to the Contractor upon the Owner's 
direction are furnished only for convenience, not reliance 
by the receiving party. Any conclusion or information 
obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at 
the user's sole risk. If there is a discrepancy between the 
electronic files and the hard copies, the hard copies 
govern.* 

J. In the event of a negligent error or omission in the 
Engineer's designs, plans, Specifications, or other services 
("the defect''), the Engineer's sole responsibility and 
liability for the defect shall not exceed the Engineer's 
services to re-perform or redesign the plans, 
specifications, services or other deliverables related to the 
defect, plus the reasonable direct damages caused by the 
defect. The Engineer shall not be liable for and damages 
shall not include the cost of any addition, betterment, or 
improvement to the Work, nor for any item that otherwise 
would have been required to complete the Work, nor the 
cost and expense that would have been incurred by the 
Owner had such defect not occurred. • 

• This is a change from the standard EJCDC E-520 
document. 

8.01 Total Agreement 

A. This Agreement (consisting of pages 1 to 4 
inclusive together with any expressly incOiporated 
appendix), constitutes the entire agreement between 
Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or 
oral understandings. This Agreement may only be 
amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly 
executed written instrument. 

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 
Copyright© 2002 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

=" -~ 



9.01 Payment (Lump Sum Basis) 
I 

A. Using the procedures set forth in paragraph 2.01, Owner shall pay Engineer as follows: 

1. A Lump Sum amount of$ 7.365.00 . This amount includes compensation for Engineer's Basic 
Services. The Lump Sum noted herein accounts for labor, overhead, and profit. 

2.• Reimbursable expenses and outside services shall be invoiced over and above the Lump Sum fee at cost times a 
1.15 multiplier. Compensation for reimbursable expenses is estimated to be$ 4.435.00 

3. • The Engineer may subcontract with other consultants to complete the services on the Project. The cost for such 
subconsultants shall be invoiced over and above the Lump Sum fee at cost times a 1.05 multiplier. The Owner shall have the 
opportunity to approve the use of such subconsultants prior the Engineer engaging their services. 

4.• Additional services authorized in writing by the Owner shalt be invoiced at the Engineer's Standard Hourly Rates, 
as shown in the attached Exhibit "B". 

s.• A retainer in the amount of$ 0.00 for the Engineer to begin work on this project. The amount of the 
retainer is included in the Lump Sum amount and will be applied to the final invoice. 

B. The Engineer's compensation is conditioned on the time to complete construction not exceeding £months. Should the 
time to complete construction be extended beyond this period, total compensation to Engineer shall be appropriately adjusted. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement. 

OWNER: 

By: 
Doug Sprouse and Signature 

Title: Mayor 

Date Signed: 

Address for giving notices: 

City of Springdale, AR 

201 Spring Street 

Springdale, AR 72764 

e-mail address: dsprouse@SpringdaleAR.gov 

• This is an addition to the standard EJCDC E-520 document. 

4of4 
(Lump Sum) 

ENGINEER: CRAFTON, TULL & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

By: 

M!c~~~ 

Title: Sr. Vice President 

Date Signed: 

License or Certificate No. and 
State 

CofA No. 109, Arkansas 

Address for giving notices: 

901 N. 47lh Street, Suite 200 

Rogers,Arkansas72756 

Attn: Michael Burns 

e-mail address: mike.burns@craftontull.com 

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 
Copyright@ 2002 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

= N 
c.c 



0. S;!2tt~~.! 
Exhibit "B" 

Standard Hourly Rate Schedule 
Effective January 2, 2016 

ENGINEER .. . .... .•. .. .. . ... .. . .. .. .. .. .•. . .. $ 105 
INTERN II .. .... . .... .... .... .. .. .. .. .. .... ... $ 90 

80 
ENGINEERING DESIGNER .... ..... .... .... .... . $ 115 

NEEAING DESIGNER Ill .. ... .. .. . .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. $ 95 

INEERING DESIGNER II .......................... $ 85 
INEERING DESIGNER I ........................ .. . $ 75 
INEERING CAD TECHNICIAN Ill .. ...... ....... $ 70 
INEERING CAD TECHNICIAN II .... . .... ... .. .. $ 55 
INEERING CAD TECHNICIAN I ............. .... $ 

N',.iiiMiltJ 
· · - -- - u 

IRobotic Survey Equipment.. ............ ........... .. $20/Hour 
Scanning Equipment ........ . ....... ........ $35/Hour 

Related Mileage .................................... $0.54/Mile 
Diem for Out of Town Crews ..... Per GSA Allowable 

and other travel related expenses ..... ..... At Cost 
and white 8.5"x11" Copies .. ........... . $0.15/sheet 
8.5"x11 " Copies ..... ..... .. ..... .... ....... $1.50/sheet 
Paper Color Plan Sheet Copies .. · .... $0.75/sq. ft. 

Reproducible Plan Copies (Vellum) .. ......... $1.50/sq. ft 
Plan Cooies (Bond) ........... .. $0.35/sa. ft. 

~ 
N 
~ 



® 
SHORT FORM OF AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

TillS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of ("Effective Date") between 

City of Springdale, Arkansas ("Owner") 

and Crafton, Tull & Associates, Inc. (''Engineer'') 

Engineer agrees to provide the services described below to Owner for Elm Springs Road Bridge Lighting (''Project"). 

Description ofEngineer's Services: See attached scope of work. 

Street Address of Property*: 

Owner and Engineer further agree as follows: 

1.01 Basic Agreement 

A. Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, 
the services set forth in this Agreement, and Owner shall 
pay Engineer for such Services as set forth in 
Paragraph 9.01. 

2.01 Payment Procedures 

A. Preparation of Invoices. Engineer will prepare 
invoices in accordance with Engineer's standard invoicing 
practices and submit the invoices to Owner. 

B. Payment of Invoices. Invoices are due and 
payable upon receipt*. If Owner fails to make any 
payment due Engineer for services and expenses within 
30 days after receipt of Engineer's invoice, the amounts 
due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per 
month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, 

1 of4 

if less) from said thirtieth day. In addition, Engineer may, 
without liability, after giving seven days written notice to 
Owner, suspend services under this Agreement until 
Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for 
services, expenses, and other related charges. Payments 
will be credited first to interest and then to principal. 

C. Lien Rights*. The Owner understands that the 
Engineer is entitled to a lien against the property if not 
paid in full for services provided to improve the property. 
The Owner understands that this lien can be enforced by 
the sale of the property if necessary. 

* This is a change from the standard EJCDC E-520 form. 

3.01 Additional Services 

A. If authorized by Owner, or if required because 
of changes in the Project, Engineer shall furnish services 
in addition to those set forth above. 

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 
Copyright © 2002 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCOC. All rights reserved. 

N 
N 
~ 



B. Owner shall pay Engineer for such additional 
services as follows: For additional services of Engineer's 
employees engaged directly on the Project an amount 
equal to the cumulative hours charged to the Project by 
each class of Engineer's employees times standard hourly 
rates for each applicable billing class; plus reimbursable 
expenses and Engineer's consultants' charges, if any. 

4.01 Termination 

A. The obligation to provide further services under 
this Agreement may be terminated: 

1. For cause, 

2of4 

a. By either party upon 30 days written 
notice in the event of substantial failure by the 
other party to perform in accordance with the 
Agreement's terms through no fault of the 
terminating party. 

b. By Engineer: 

upon seven days written notice if 
Engineer believes that Engineer is being 
requested by Owner to furnish or perform 
services contrary to Engineer's 
responsibilities as a licensed professional; 
or 

upon seven days written notice if the 
Engineer's services for the Project are 
delayed or suspended for more than 90 
days for reasons beyond Engineer's 
control. 

Engineer shall have no liability to Owner 
on account of such termination. 

c. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this 
Agreement will not terminate as a result 
of a substantial failure under 
paragraph 4.0l.A.l.a ifthe party receiving 
such notice begins, within seven days of 
receipt of such notice, to correct its failure 
and proceeds diligently to cure such 
failure within no more than 30 days of 
receipt of notice; provided, however, that 
if and to the extent such substantial failure 
cannot be reasonably cured within such 30 
day period, and if such party has 
diligently attempted to cure the same and 
thereafter continues diligently to cure the 
same, then the cure period provided for 
herein shall extend up to, but in no case 

more than, 60 days after the date of 
receipt of the notice. 

2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon the 
receipt of notice by Engineer. 

B. The terminating party under paragraphs 
4.0l.A.l or 4.01.A.2 may set the effective date of 
termination at a time up to 30 days later than otherwise 
provided to allow Engineer to demobilize personnel and 
equipment from the Project site, to complete tasks whose 
value would otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the 
status of completed and uncompleted tasks, and to 
assemble Project materials in orderly files. 

5.0 1 Controlling Law 

A. This Agreement is to be governed by the law of 
the state in which the Project is located. 

6.01 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries 

A. Owner and Engineer each is hereby bound and 
the partners, successors, executors, administrators, and 
legal representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the 
extent permitted by paragraph 6.0l.B the assigns of 
Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound to the other party 
to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, 
executors, administrators, and legal representatives {and 
said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations of this 
Agreement. 

B. Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, 
or transfer any rights under or interest (including, but 
without limitation, moneys that are due or may become 
due) in this Agreement without the written consent of the 
other, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting, 
or transfer is mandated or restricted by law. Unless 
specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent 
to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge 
the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this 
Agreement. 

7.0 1 General Considerations 

A. The standard of care for all professional 
engineering and related services performed or furnished 
by Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and 
skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession 
practicing under similar circumstances at the same time 
and in the same locality. Engineer makes no warranties, 
express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in 
connection with Engineer's services. Engineer and its 
C".onsultants may use or rely upon the design services of 

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 
Copyright© 2002 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

~ 
N 
~ 



others, including, but not limited to, contractors, 
manufacturers, and suppliers. 

B. Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, 
or have control over any contractor's work, nor shall 
Engineer have authority over or responsibility for the 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of 
construction selected or used by any contractor, for safety 
precautions and programs incident to a contractor's work 
progress, nor for any failure of any contractor to comply 
with laws and regulations applicable to contractor's work. 

C. Engineer neither guarantees the performance of 
any contractor nor assumes responsibility for any 
contractor's failure to furnish and perform its work in 
accordance with the contract between Owner and such 
contractor. 

D. Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts 
or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, or supplier, 
or of any contractor's agents or employees or any other 
persons (except Engineer's own employees) at the Project 
site or otherwise furnishing or performing any of 
construction work; or for any decision made on 
interpretations or clarifications of the construction 
contract given by Owner without consultation and advice 
of Engineer. 

E. The general conditions for any construction 
contract documents prepared hereunder are to be the 
"Standard General Conditions of the Construction 
Contract@ as prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract 
Documents Committee (No. C· 700, 2002 Edition). 

F. All design documents prepared or furnished by 
Engineer are instruments of service, and Engineer retains 
an ownership and property interest (including the 
copyright and the right of reuse) in such documents, 
whether or not the Project is completed. 

G. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner 
and Engineer (1) waive against each other, and the other's 
employees, officers, directors, agents, insurers, partners, 
and consultants, any and all claims for or entitlement to 
special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages 
arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the 
Project, and (2) agree that Engineer's total liability to 
Owner under this Agreement shall be limited to $50,000 
or the total amount of compensation received by 
Engineer, whichever is greater. 

H. The parties acknowledge that Engineer's scope 
of services does not include any services related to a 
Hazardous Environmental Condition (the presence of 
asbestos, PCBs, petroleum, ha7.ardous substances or 
waste, and radioactive materials). If Engineer or any other 

3 of4 

party encounters a Hazardous Environmental Condition, 
Engineer may, at its option and without liability for 
consequential or any other damages, suspend performance 
of services on the portion of the Project affected thereby 
until Owner: (i) retains appropriate specialist consultants 
or contractors to identify and, as appropriate, abate, 
remediate, or remove the Hazardous Environmental 
Condition; and (ii) warrants that the Site is in full 
compliance with applicable Laws and Regulations. 

I. Files in electronic media format of text, data, 
graphics, or other types that are furnished by the Engineer 
to the Owner or to the Contractor upon the Owner's 
direction are furnished only for convenience, not reliance 
by the receiving party. Any conclusion or information 
obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at 
the user's sole risk. If there is a discrepancy between the 
electronic files and the hard copies, the hard copies 
govern.* 

J. In the event of a negligent error or omission in the 
Engineer's designs, plans, Specifications, or other services 
("the defect"), the Engineer's sole responsibility and 
liability for the defect shall not exceed the Engineer's 
services to re·perform or redesign the plans, 
specifications, services or other deliverables related to the 
defect, plus the reasonable direct damages caused by the 
defect. The Engineer shall not be liable for and damages 
shall not include the cost of any addition, betterment, or 
improvement to the Work, nor for any item that otherwise 
would have been required to complete the Work, nor the 
cost and expense that would have been incurred by the. 
Owner had such defect not occurred."' 

* This is a change from the standard EJCDC E·520 
document. 

8.01 Total Agreement 

A. This Agreement (consisting of pages 1 to 4 
inclusive together with any expressly incorporated 
appendix), constitutes the entire agreement between 
Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or 
oral understandings. This Agreement may only be 
amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly 
executed written instrument. 

EJCDC E·520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 
Copyright © 2002 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

"'Il' 
M 
~ 



9.01 Payment (Lump Sum Basis) 

A. Using the procedures set forth in paragraph 2.01, Owner shall pay Engineer as follows: 

1. A Lump Sum amount of$ 7.365.00 . This amount includes compensation for Engineer's Basic 
Services. The Lump Sum noted herein accounts for labor, overhead, and profit. 

2. * Reimbursable expenses and outside services shall be invoiced over and above the Lump Sum fee at cost times a 
1.15 multiplier. Compensation for reimbursable expenses is estimated to be$ 4.435.00 

3. * The Engineer may subcontract with other consultants to complete the services on the Project. The cost for such 
subconsultants shall be invoiced over and above the Lump Sum fee at cost times a 1.05 multiplier. The Owner shall have the 
opportunity to approve the use of such subconsultants prior the Engineer engaging their services. 

4. * Additional services authorized in writing by the Owner shall be invoiced at the Engineer's Standard Hourly Rates, 
as shown in the attached Exhibit "B". 

5.* A retainer in the amount of$ 0.00 for the Engineer to begin work on this project. The amount of the 
retainer is included in the Lump Sum amount and will be applied to the final invoice. 

B. The Engineer's compensation is conditioned on the time to complete construction not exceeding 2. months. Should the 
time to complete construction be extended beyond this period, total compensation to Engineer shall be appropriately adjusted. 

IN WTINESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement. 

OWNER: 

By: 
Doug Sprouse and Signature 

Title: Mayor 

Date Signed: 

Address for giving notices: 

City of Springdale, AR 

201 Spring Street 

Springdale, AR 72764 

e-mail address: dsprouse@SpringdaleAR.gov 

* This is an addition to the standard EJCDC E-520 document. 

4of4 
(Lump Sum) 

ENGINEER: CRAFTON, TOLL & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

By: 
M!c.~~p~~ 

Title: Sr. Vice President 

Date Signed: 

License or Certificate No. and 
State 

CofANo. 109, Arkansas 

Address for giving notices: 

901 N. 47th Street, Suite 200 

Rogers, Arkansas 72756 

Attn: Michael Bums 

e-mail address: mike.burns@craftontull.com 

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 
Copyright© 2002 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

II) 
N 
~ 



0 Crafton Tull 
Exhibit A 

. r--c 
Project: Elm Spring Road over 1-49 

Scope of Services forJ.is.hting Details 

Client: City of Springdale 
Discipline: Bridge 

Discipline Manager: Jose Joseph 
Project Manager: Mike Burns 

Proposal Date: 03/02/2016 
Billing Type: Lump Sum 

Fee/Estimate: $11,500.00 
Description of the Construction Coordinate with City of Springdale to provide new 

Project: street lighting at proposed bridge. 

The scope of services for lighting design, details and specification for new steel lighting at 
proposed bridge on Elm Spring Road over 1-49 shall include the following: 

• Coordination with Electrical Subcontractor for design and specification of the 
Electrical Power systems as detailed in the scope provided by Engineering Elements, 
PLLC. 

• Coordination with the City of Springdale for type and details of light pole. 
• Light Pole Support Design at the bridge. 
• Electrical lighting and light pole support details. 
• Provide necessary lighting specifications 

1. The Scope of Services for lighting Services does NOT include the following: 
a) No design calculations will be provided. 
b) Surveying. 
c) Utility relocation. 
d) Right-of-way. 
e) Permitting. 
f) Geotechnical engineering. 
g) Bridge Design 
h) Hydraulic analysis. 
i) Site Design 
j) Shoring Design 
k) Aesthetic features. 
I) Utilities. 
m) Letting administration. 
n) Construction administration. 
o) Hiring materials testing company. 

This is the scope of services for Lighting System Design. Should there be additions to this 
scope of services, those services shall be compensated for an additional fee. 

\C) 

N 
~ 



Engineering Elements, PLLC 
2458&tJO)Ul mw., ~ 1 F~ Mansas7Ilffi 

Mr. Mike Burns~ Mr. Jose Joseph 
Crafton~ Tull & Associates, Inc. 
901 North 47'h Street, Suite 200 
Rogers, AR 72756 

l:bn:(479)0J5..1333 Fax: (479) 25W714 

Re: Elm Springs Road Bridge Over Interstate 49- Street Ughting 
Springdale, Arkansas 

Mr. Burns and Mr. Joseph~ 

February 221 2016 

I am pleased to propose electrical engineering services to you for the above referenced project. 
This proposal is based on the preliminary information we received from your office and from our 
preliminary conversations. It is my understanding that this project will consist of new street 
lighting at the bridge over Interstate 49 at Elm Springs Road. 

1. Design Services: 
Our services include the following standard engineering services: 
a. Preliminary Design and Design Development 
b. Contract Documents including Written Specifications 
c. Bidding Assistance, Submittal Review and Construction Observation. 

2. Scope of Systems Designed: 
The above-listed services will apply to the electrical systems listed below. 

a. Electrical: 
i. New street lighting systems and controls. 
ii. Electrical power distribution system from utility point-of-connection to all new 

street lighting. 

The fee for the above described services is proposed as a Fixed Fee of Three Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars ($3~500) . Additional services that you may request will be provided on an 
hourly basis, utilizing the following hourly rates: 

Principal Engineer 
Draftsman 

$135 
$65 

Electrical Engineer 
Admin 

$105 
$45 

If this proposal is acceptable please sign in the space provided and return a copy for my files. If 
you have any questions or need additional information~ please contact me. 

s~~ 
Shane R. Lanning, P.E Mike Burns 

I' 
N 
~ 



APPENDIX A 
MAN~HOUR ESTIMATE 

Elm Spring Road 
Crafton, Tull & Associates, Inc. 

Lighting System 
March 2, 2016 

LIGHTING Man-hour Estimate 

SR. 
ADMIN. EN GR. ENG. ENG. 

ID TASK ASST. TECH INTERN MANG. 

OM TM LW JKJ 
A Design 
1 Light Pole Support Design 8 4 
B Details 
1 Electrical Lighting Details 5 1 
2 Light Pole Support Details 8 2 
C Project Management and Quanllty Control 
1 Quality Control 
2 Coordination with Subconsultant and City of Springdele 4 
3 Review Specifications 4 
4 Project Management 4 

.. -
0 0 -- 2"1 19 

Subtotal Brg. No. 05945 0 0 21 19 

SUMMARY OF MAN-HOURS & COMPUTATION OF DIRECT LABOR COSTS UNITS 

QCSR 
ENG. SUPR. TOTAL 

MANG. EN GR. HOURS 

cw MW/MB 
0 
12 
0 
6 
10 
0 

8 8 
5 9 

4 8 
0 

8 9 53 

8 9 57 

RATE TOTAL 
Admfnistrallw ASSrstarilll 0.0 Hours $55.00 $0.00 
Engineering Designer I 0.0 Hours $85.00 $0.00 
Engineering Intern 11 21.0 Hours sas_oo $1,785.00 
Sr. Engineering Manager 19.0 Hours $150.00 $2,850.00 
QC Sr. Engineering Manager 8.0 Hours $150.00 $1,200.00 
Supervisor Engineer 9.0 Hours $170.00 $1,530.00 

Sub-Total Direct Labor 

SUMMARY OF DIRECT EXPENSES 

Travel Mileage 
Travel Expenses 

Fed-Ex and Postage 

Printing and Reproduction 
SubConsultant (Engineering Elements, PLLC) 

Sub-Total Direct Expenses 

TOTAL Lighting System • Crafton, Tull & Associates, Inc. 

A~1 

57.0 

UNITS 

Miles 

Each 

2 LS 

10 Sheats 
1.15 MarKup 

$7,365.00 

RATE TOTAL 

$0.55 $0.00 

$50.00 $0.00 

$45.00 $90.00 
$2.00 $20.00 

$3,500.00 $4,025.00 

$4,135.00 

$11,500.00 

I 

QC) 
M 
~ 



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE WILLINGNESS OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGDALE TO UTILIZE FEDERAL-AID FUNDS FOR THE 
FOLLOWING CITY PROJECT- DEAN'S TRAIL 

WHEREAS, the Northwest Arkansas Regional Planning Commission has 
recently approved Federal~aid Transportation Alternatives Program funds for the project 
at the following Federal and City participating ratios: 

Type of Work Work Phase Federal% City% 
Construction of City Pro jed Preliminary Engineering 0 100 

Right-of-Way 80 20 
Utilities 80 20 

Construction 80 20 
Construction Engineering 0 100 

City projects programmed 
but not let to contract All Phases -0- 100 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that: 

Section 1: The City will participate in accordance with its designated 
responsibility in this project including maintenance of this project. 

Section II: Mayor or his designated representative is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute all appropriate agreements and contracts necessary to expedite the 
construction of this City project. 

Section Ill: The City pledges it full support and hereby authorizes the Arkansas 
State Highway and Transportation Department to initiate action to implement this 
project. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of , 2016. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest s-:-Cate, City Attorney 

Q\ 
N 
~ 



ARKANSAS STATE HIGHWAY RECEIV~n ~ :. ) -'' () 2016 

AND 
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 

Scott E. Bennett 
Director 

Telephone (501) 569-2000 
Voice!ITY 711 

The Honorable Doug Sprouse 
Mayor of Springdale 
201 Spring Street 
Springdale, AR 72764 

Dear Mayor Sprouse: 

March 1, 2016 

P.O. Box 2261 
Little Rock, Arkansas 72203-2261 

Telefax (501) 569-2400 
www.arkansashighways.com 

RECEIVED~ 
•ul\ .·. 20•& f'lftft: - ·u 1 

PLANNlNG OFPIOE crrv OF SPRINGDALE 

Re: Dean's Trail Phase 1 (Springdale) 

Reference is made to your letter requesting that the Department begin project development on 
the Dean's Trail Phase 1 project recently approved by the Northwest Arkansas Regional 
Planning Commission. 

In order to proceed with a Federal-aid project, your City Council must adopt a resolution (sample 
enclosed) authorizing you to enter into any necessary agreements with the Department for the 
project. Then you and the City Attorney must sign the enclosed Agreement of Understanding. 
Upon receipt of the resolution and Agreement, State and Federal-aid job numbers will be 
assigned and a copy of the executed Agreement of Understanding will be returned to you. When 
submitting the Agreement to the Department for execution, you will also need to sign 
Attachment N and complete Attachment 0. 

If you have any questions, please contact Daniel Siskowski or Carlos Meredith at 
(501) 569-2261. 

Enclosures 

c: Deputy Director and Chief Engineer 
Program Management 
Transportation Planning and Policy 
District 4 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Kevin Thornton 
Assistant Chief Engineer - Planning 

Mr. Jeff Hawkins, Executive Director - NWA Regional Planning Commission 

= ~ 
~ 



FEDERAL-AID PROJECT RESOLUTION 

RESOLUTION NO.-----

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE WILLINGNESS OF 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE 

TO UTILIZE FEDERAL-AID FUNDS 
FOR THE FOLLOWING CITY PROJECT: 

Dean's Trail Phase 1 

WHEREAS, the Northwest Arkansas Regional Planning Commission has recently 
approved Federal-aid Transportation Alternatives Program funds for the project at the following 
Federal and City participating ratios: 

Type Work Work Phase Federal% City% 
Construction of City Projects Preliminary Engineering 0 100 

Right-of-Way 80 20 
Utilities 80 20 

Construction 80 20 
Construction Engineering 0 100 

City projects programmed but 
All Phases -0- 100 not let to contract 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, THAT: 

SECTION I: The City will participate in accordance with its designated responsibility 
in this project including maintenance of this project. 

SECTION II: The Mayor or his designated representative is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute all appropriate agreements and contracts necessary to expedite the 
construction of this City project. 

SECTION III: The City pledges its full support and hereby authorizes the Arkansas 
State Highway and Transportation Department to initiate action to implement this project. 

THIS RESOLUTION adopted this day of 2016. 

ATTEST: --------------------

(SEAL) 

Doug Sprouse 
Mayor 

.-I 
~ 
~ 



AGREEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE 
AND 

THE ARKANSAS STATE HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 

In Cooperation with the 
U.S. Department ofTransportation 

Federal Highway Administration 

RELATIVE TO 

Construction of Dean's Trail Phase 1 (hereinafter called the "Project") as a Federal-aid project. 

WHEREAS, funding in the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) Act and 
Fixing America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act includes 80% Federal-aid funds to be 
matched with 20% non-federal funds for approved Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) 
projects; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale (hereinafter called "Sponsor") has expressed its desire to 
use Federal-aid funds for the eligible Project and to provide necessary matching cash share for 
such funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Sponsor will transmit to the Arkansas State Highway and Transportation 
Department (hereinafter called the "Department") a signed and sealed Resolution from the City 
Council authorizing the Mayor to execute agreements and contracts with the Department for the 
Project; and 

WHEREAS, funding participation will be as follows, subject to the amount of Federal-aid 
approved for the Project: 

Maximum Minimum 
Federal% SQonsor% 

Project Design: 0 100 
Right-of-Way/Utilities: 80 20 
Construction: 80 20 
Construction Inspection: 0 100 
Department Administrative Cost (1% ofConst. Amt.): 0 100 ; and 

WHEREAS, the Sponsor knows of no legal impediments to the completion of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, it is understood that the Sponsor and the Department will adhere to the General 
Requirements for Recipients and Sub-Recipients Concerning Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises (DBEs) (Attachment A) and that, as part of these requirements, the Department may 
set goals for DBE participation in the Project ranging from 0% to 1 00% that are practical and 
related to the potential availability ofDBEs in desired areas of expertise. 

WHEREAS, it is specifically agreed between the parties executing this agreement that it is not 
intended by any of the provisions of any part of the agreement to make the public or any member 
thereof a third party beneficiary hereunder or to authorize anyone not a party to this agreement to 
maintain a suit or action for injuries or damage of any nature pursuant to the terms or provisions 
of this agreement. 

- 1 -
~ 
~ 
~ 



IT IS HEREBY AGREED that the Sponsor and the Department, in cooperation with the Federal 
Highway Administration, will participate in a cooperative program for implementation of the 
Project and will accept the responsibilities and assigned duties as described hereinafter. 

THE SPONSOR WILL: 

1. Notify the Department in writing who the Sponsor designates as its full-time employee to be 
in responsible charge of the day to day oversight of the Project (Attachment B). The duties 
and functions of this person are: 

• Oversee project activities, including those dealing with cost, time, adherence to contract 
requirements, construction quality and scope of Federal-aid projects; 

• Maintains familiarity of day to day project operations, including project safety issues; 
• Makes or participates in decisions about changed conditions or scope changes that require 

change orders and/or supplemental agreements; 
• During construction, visits and reviews the project on a daily basis; 
• Reviews financial processes, transactions and documentation to ensure that safeguards 

are in place to minimize fraud, waste, and abuse; 
• Directs project staff, Sponsor or consultant, to carry out project administration and 

contract oversight, including proper documentation; 
• Be aware of the qualifications, assignments and on-the-job performance of the Sponsor 

and consultant staff at all stages of the project 

2. Request review from the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program (AHPP) (Attachment C). 
Then, forward AHPP's approval to the Department. 

3. Prepare plans, specifications, and a cost estimate for construction. A registered professional 
engineer or licensed architect must sign the plans and specifications for the Project. 

4. Ensure that the plans and specifications comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA), the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 
(AASHTO) design standards, and all other applicable state and federal regulations, including 
airport clearance when necessary, for the type of work involved (See Attachment D for items 
to be included in the bid proposal). 

5. Before acquiring property or relocating utilities, contact the Department's Right of Way 
Division to obtain the procedures for acquiring right-of-way and adjusting utilities in 
conformance with federal regulations. NOTE: Failure to notify the Department prior to 
initiating these phases of work may result in all project expenditures being declared 
non-participating in federal funds. 

6. Acquire property in accordance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended (commonly referred to as the "Uniform Act"). 

7. Provide a copy of the registered deed or other approved documentation and an appropriate 
certification stating the Sponsor's clear and unencumbered title to any right-of-way to be 
used for the Project (See Attachment E). 

8. Submit a certification letter (Attachment F), including all items noted, to the Department 
when requesting authority to advertise the Project for construction bids. 

- 2 -
rf') 
rf') 

~ 



9. Advertise for bids in accordance with federal procedures as shown in Attachment G. 
NOTE: FHWA authorization and Department approval must be given prior to 
advertising for construction bids. 

10. Forward a copy of all addenda to the Project during the advertisement to the Department. 

11. After bids are opened and reviewed, submit a certification (Attachment H), including all 
items noted, to the Department and request concurrence in award of the contract. 

12. Prior to issuing the notice to proceed to the Contractor, hold a pre-construction meeting with 
the Contractor and invite the Department's Resident Engineer assigned to the Project. 

13. Perform construction inspection in accordance with Attachment I. 

14. Make payments to the contractor for work accomplished in accordance with the plans and 
specifications and then request reimbursement from the Department on the Construction 
Certification and Reimbursement Request (CCRR) form (Attachment J). 

15. Attach LPA Report of Daily Work Performed (Attachment K) for all days that correspond 
with each CCRR submittal. 

16. Prior to executing the work, submit change orders to the contract to the Department's 
Resident Engineer assigned to the Project for review and approval for program eligibility. 

17. Upon completion ofthe Project, hold a final acceptance meeting for the Project and submit 
the LP A Final Acceptance Report form certifying that the Project was accomplished in 
accordance with the plans and specifications (Attachment L). This form must be signed by 
the engineer/architect performing construction inspection on the Project, the Department's 
Resident Engineer assigned to the project, the Sponsor's full-time employee in responsible 
charge, and the Sponsor's CEO. 

18. Maintain accounting records to adequately support reimbursement with Federal-aid funds 
and be responsible for the inspection, measurement and documentation of pay items, and 
certification of all work in accordance with the plans and specifications for the Project and 
for monitoring the Contractor and subcontractor(s) for compliance with the provisions of 
FHW A-1273, Required Contract Provisions, Federal-aid Construction Contracts, and 
Supplements. 

19. Pay all unpaid claims for all materials, labor, and supplies entered into contingent or 
incidental to the construction of said work or used in the course of said work including but 
not limited to materials, labor, and supplies described in and provided for in Act Nos. 65 and 
368 of 1929, Act No. 82 of 1935, and Acts amendatory thereof. 

20. To the extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless the Arkansas State Highway 
Commission, the Department, its officers and employees from any and all claims, lawsuits, 
judgments, damages, costs, expenses, and losses, including those arising from claims before 
the Arkansas Claims Commission or lawsuits brought in any other legal forum, sustained on 
account of the operations or actions of the Sponsor, including any act of omission, neglect or 
misconduct of the Sponsor. Further, the Sponsor shall take no action to compromise the 
immunity from civil suits afforded the State of Arkansas, the State Highway Commission, 
Arkansas Code 19-10-305, or the 11th Amendment of the United State Constitution. This 
obligation of indemnification shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

- 3 -
~ 
f") 

=.. 



It is acknowledged that the Sponsor is entitled to certain immunities provided by 
A.C.A. §21-9-301 and that nothing contained herein shall be construed as a waiver of any 
such statutory immunities. 

21. Assure that its policies and practices with regard to its employees, any part of whose 
compensation is reimbursed from federal funds, will be without regard to race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, age, or disability in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, The Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990, as amended, and Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 21 (49 CFR 
21), Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation. 

22. Retain all records relating to inspection and certification, the Contractor's billing statements, 
and any other files necessary to document the performance and completion of the work in 
accordance with requirements of 49 CFR 18.42 - Retention and access requirements for 
records (Attachment M). 

23. Grant the right of access to Sponsor's records pertinent to this Project and the right to audit 
by the Department and Federal Highway Administration officials. 

24. Be responsible for its portion of the total project cost and 1% of the contract amount for 
Department administration. 

25. Be responsible for I 00% of all project costs incurred should the Project not be completed as 
specified. 

26. Be responsible for 100% of any and all expenditures which are declared non-participating in 
federal funds, including awards by the State Claims Commission. 

27. Sign and transmit to the Department the Certification for Grants, Loans, and Cooperative 
Agreements (Attachment N), which is necessary for Project participation. 

28. Repay to the Department the federal share ofthe cost of any portion ofthis Project if, for any 
reason, federal participation is removed due to actions or inactions of the Sponsor, its agents, 
its employees, or its assigns or the Sponsor's consultants or contractors or their agents. Such 
actions or inactions shall include, but are not limited to, federal non-participation arising 
from problems with design plans, specifications, construction, change orders, construction 
inspection, or contractor payment procedures. The Sponsor understands and agrees that the 
Department may cause necessary funds to be withheld from the Sponsor's Motor Fuel Tax 
allotment should the Sponsor fail to pay to the Department any required funds, fail to 
complete the Project as specified, or fail ~o adequately maintain or operate the Project. 

29. Repay all federal funds if this is determined necessary for any reason. 

30. Retain total, direct control over the Project throughout the life of the improvements and not, 
without prior approval from the Department: 

• sell, transfer, or otherwise abandon any portion of the Project; 
• change the intended use of the Project as approved; 
• make significant alterations to any improvements constructed with Federal-aid funds; 

or 

• cease maintenance or operation of a project due to the Project's obsolescence. 

-4 -
I() 
~ 
~ 



31. Be responsible for satisfactory maintenance and operation of all improvements and for 
adopting regulations and ordinances as necessary to ensure this. Failure to adequately 
maintain and operate the Project in accordance with Federal-aid requirements may result in 
the Sponsor's repayment of federal funds and may result in withholding all future 
Federal-aid. 

32. Submit to the Department a Single Audit in accordance with the Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 each fiscal year that the Sponsor expends more than $500,000 
of Federal-aid from any federal source including, but not limited to, the U.S. Department of 
Transportation. The fiscal year used for the reporting is based on the Sponsor's fiscal year. 
The $500,000 threshold is subject to change after OMB periodic reviews. 

33. Promptly notify the Department if the Project is rendered unfit for continued use by natural 
disaster or other cause. 

34. Complete and transmit to the Department both pages of the Federal Funding Accountability 
and Transparency Act (FFATA) Reporting Requirements (Attachment 0). 

THE DEPARTMENT WILL: 

1. Maintain an administrative file for the Project and be responsible for administering 
Federal-aid funds. 

2. Provide routine environmental documentation for the Project. 

3. Notify the Sponsor when right-of-way and/or utility plans are approved and the Sponsor 
may proceed with right-of-way acquisition and/or utility adjustments. 

4. Upon receipt of the Sponsor's certification of right-of-way (property) ownership, provide 
the appropriate documentation to the file. 

5. Review plans and specifications for project/program eligibility. 

6. Ensure substantial compliance with federal contracting requirements through review of the 
bidding proposal for inclusion of required federal forms, review ofthe administration of the 
DBE program provisions, and general compliance with 23 CFR 635. 

7. Advise the Sponsor when to proceed with advertisement of the Project for construction bids. 

8. Review bid tabulations and concur in award of the construction contract for the Project. 

9. Participate in the Sponsor's preconstruction and final acceptance meetings. 

10. Visually verify (insofar as is reasonably possible) that the work meets contract requirements 
before reimbursement is made to the Sponsor. 

11. Review and approve any necessary change orders for project/program eligibility. 

12. Reimburse the Sponsor 80% (Federal-aid share) for eligible costs up to the maximum 
Federal-aid amount as approved in the CCRR form (Attachment J). This reimbursement 
will be limited to the maximum Federal-aid amount and to the federal amount available at 
the time payment is requested. If the payment requested exceeds the Federal-aid available at 

- 5 -

'.c 
ff"l 
~ 



the time, the difference will be reimbursed as additional Federal-aid for the Project becomes 
available. 

13. Subject to the availability of Federal-aid allocated for the Project, pay the Sponsor the 
remaining amount due upon completion of the Project and submittal of the certified LP A 
Final Acceptance Report form (Attachment L). 

IT IS FURTHER AGREED that should the Sponsor fail to fulfill its responsibilities and assigned 
duties as related in this Agreement, such failure may disqualify the Sponsor from receiving all 
future Federal-aid funds administered by the Department. 

IT IS FURTHER AGREED that should the Sponsor fail to pay to the Department any required 
funds due for implementation of the Project or fail to complete the Project as specified in this 
Agreement or fail to adequately maintain or operate the Project, the Department may cause funds 
as may be required to be withheld from the Sponsor's Motor Fuel Tax allotment. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties thereto have executed this Agreement on this _ __ _ 

day of , 2016. 

ARKANSAS STATE HIGHWAY AND 
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 

CITY OF SPRINGDALE 

Scott E. Bennett 
Director of Highways and Transportation 

ARKANSAS STATE HIGHWAY 
AND TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION 

Doug Sprouse 
Mayor 

Ernest Cate 
City Attorney 

The Arkansas State Highway and Transportation Department (Department) complies with all civil rights provisions of federal statutes and 
related authorities that prohibit discrimination in programs and activities receiving federal financial assistance. Therefore, the Department docs 
not discriminate on the basis of race, sex, color, age, national origin, religion or disability, in the admission, access to and treatment in the 
Department's programs and activities, as well as the Department's hiring or employment practices. Complaints of alleged discrimination and 
inquiries regarding the Department's nondiscrimination policies may be directed to Joanna P. McFadden Section Head - EEO/DBE 
(ADA/504/Title Vl Coordinator), P. 0. Box 2261, Little Rock, AR 72203, (501) 569-2298, (VoiceffTY 711), or the following email address: 
joanna.rncfadden@ahtd.ar gov 

Free language assistance for Limited English Proficient individuals is available upon request. 

This notice is available from the ADA/504ffitle VI Coordinator in large print, on audiotape and in Braille. 

- 6 -

t-
ff'l 
C-4 



GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
FOR 

Attachment A 

RECIPIENTS AND SUB-RECIPIENTS 
CONCERNING DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRlSES 

It is the policy of the U. S. Department of Transportation that disadvantaged 
business enterprises (DBEs) as defined in 49 CFR Part 26 shall have the maximum 
opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part 
with Federal funds under this Agreement. Consequently, the DBE requirements of 49 
CFR Part 26 apply to this Agreement. 

The recipient or its contractor agrees to ensure that DBEs as defmed in 49 CFR 
Part 26 have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and 
subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds provided under this 
Agreement. In this regard all recipients or contractors shall take all necessary and 
reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure that DBEs have the 
maximum opportunity to compete for and perform contracts. Recipients and their 
contractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the 
award and performance of DOT -assisted contracts. 

If as a condition of assistance the recipient has submitted and the Department has 
approved a disadvantaged business enterprise affirmative action program, which the 
recipient agrees to carry out, this program is incorporated into this financial assistance 
agreement by reference. This program shall be treated as a legal obligation and failure to 
carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this financial assistance agreement. 
Upon notification to the recipient of its failure to carry out the approved program, the 
Department shall impose such sanctions as noted in 49 CFR Part 26, Subpart F, which 
sanctions may include termination of the Agreement or other measures that may affect 
the ability of the recipient to obtain future DOT financial assistance. 

The recipient shall advise each sub-recipient, contractor or subcontractor that 
failure to carry out the requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 26, Subsections 26.101 and 
26.107 shall substitute a breach of contract and after the notification of the Department, 
may result in termination of the agreement or contract by the recipient or such remedy as 
the recipient deems appropriate. 

(NOTE: Where appropriate, the term "recipient" may be modified to mean 
"sub-recipient", and the term "contractor" modified to include "subcontractor".) 

00 
ff') 

~ 



Mr. Emanuel Banks 

Sponsor Letterhead 

(Designating Full-Time Employee 
in Responsible Charge) 

DATE 

Deputy Director and Chief Engineer 
Arkansas State Highway and Transportation Depwtment 
P. 0. Box 2261 
Little Rock, AR 72203 

Re: Job# 
Job Name 
County 

Dear Mr. Banks: 

Attachment B 

The full-time employee in responsible charge of the day to day oversight for the referenced 
project will be . 1bis letter certifies that the employee is aware of the 
duties and functions they are in charge of as outlined in the Agreement of Understanding. 

Sincerely, 

NAME & OFFICE 
(Sponsor's CEO) 

0\ 
~ 
~ 



Ms. Stacy Hurst 
Historic Preservation Program 
1500 Tower Building 
323 Center Street 
Little Rock, AR 7220 1 

Dear Ms. Miller: 

DATE 

Re: Job# 
Job Name 
County 

The City of .... proposes the enhancement of project and location. 

Describe the project. A location map is enclosed. 

Attachment C 

(enclose a map ..... a USGS 7.5 minute topographic quadrangle is preferred by SHPO) 

We appreciate any comments you may have regarding the handling of this project. If name the 
contact person for the sponsor and phone number ... can be of assistance in this activity, please 
let us know. 

Enclosure(s) 

Sincerely, 

NAME & OFFICE 
(Sponsor's CEO) 

= ...,. 
~ 



Attachment D 

REQUIRED CONTENTS 0}~ BIDDING PROPOSALS 
FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS 

1) FHWA-1273 

Each set of contract docwnents shall include FHW A-1273, "Required Contract Provisions, 
Federal-aid Construction Contracts," and such supplements that may modify the FHWA-
1273. Copies of FHW A-1273 and supplements will be provided by the Department. 

2) Anti-Collusion and Debarment Certification 

The certification shall either be in the form of an affidavit executed and sworn to by the bidder 
before a person who is authorized by the laws of the State to administer oaths or in the form of 
an unsworn declaration executed under penalty of perjury of the law of the United States. The 
required form for the Anti-Collusion and Debarment Certification will be provided by the 
Department. The certification includes: 

• Anti-collusion - A statement executed by, or on behalf of the person, firm, association, or 
corporation submitting the bid certifying that such person, firm, association, or 
corporation has not, either directly or in-directly, entered into any agreement, participated 
in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action, in restraint of free competitive bidding in 
connection with the submitted bid. 

• Debarment - A statement regarding debarment, suspension, ineligibility and voluntary 
exclusion as required by Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 29 (49 CFR 29). 

Failure to submit the executed Certification as part of the bidding documents will make 
the bid nonresponsive and not eligible for award consideration. 

3) Lobbying Certification 

This certification is required by 49 CFR 20. The form for this certification will be provided 
by the Department. 

4) Davis-Bacon Pre-determined Minimum Wage Rates 

Davis-Bacon requirements apply to all projects greater than $2,000 that are physically located 
within the existing right-of-way of a functionally classified city street and all Transportation 
Alternatives Projects regardless of location. The Davis-Bacon wage rates will be provided by 
the Department. 

~ ..,. 
~ 



CITY I COUNTY LETTERHEAD 

JOB NUMBER 

JOB DESCRIPTION 

CoUNTY 

Attaclunent E 

Title to the right of way necessary for the construction of this project has been acquired, or will be 
acquired, in accordance with applicable Federal Highway Administration procedures. 

! indicate total number in each category here. Delete any categories not used in tbis job. 
Tract(s) 
Options(s) 
Paid 
Donation(s) 
Negotiation Pending* -include tract number(s) and statement: "It is anticipated that 
this/these tract(s) will be acquired by (date)." 
Condemnation(s)- (include Order of Possession date or date the Court Order was filed) 
Condemnation(s) Pending*- include tract number(s) and anticipated filing date 

tdelete the statement in each pair that does not apply 
There are no displacees on this project. 

-Or-

* If applicable 

Relocation Assistance has been provided in accordance with applicable Federal Highway 
Administration procedures and all displacees have moved from this project. There was/were if. 
displaced (residence(s)/business(es)/personal property/etc) on the project. 

There are no structures located within the right of way area. 
-Or-

All structures have been removed from this project, except for those to be included as demolition 
items in the highway contract. 

No conflicting utilities are known to exist in the right of way area. 
-Or-

Necessary utility relocation has been, or will be, completed as shown in the attached Utility Status 
Report. 

There are no railroads involved on this project 
-OR-

Tract(s) #_shown above include(s) # __ (Permanent/Temporary Construction Easements) for 
Railroad. ----

No right of way in excess of that needed for construction or future maintenance of this project was 
acquired. 

Certified by:. _________ _ 
(Type name) 
(Type title) 

Date: ______ _ 

M 
"'~:~' 
~ 



CERTIFICATION LETTER 
REQUESTING AUTHORITY TO ADVERTISE 

DATE 

Mr. Emanuel Banks 
Deputy Director and Chief Engineer 
Arkansas State Highway and Transportation Department 
P. 0 . Box 2261 
Little Rock, AR 72203 

Re: Job# 
Job Name 
Countv 

Dear Mr. Banks: 

The following documents are submitted concerning the referenced project: 

1. One set of plans and specifications. 
2. A copy of the preliminary estimate of cost. 
3. An unexecuted copy of the bid proposal fonn. 

Attachment F 

I certify that the plans, specifications and ·estimate were prepared by or under the direct 
supervision of a Professional Engineer/ Architect licensed to practice in the State of Arkansas and 
that the plans and specifications comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the 
American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) design 
standards, and all other applicable state and federal regulations, including airport clearance when 
necessary, for the type of work involved. 

I understand that if any project items are declared non-participating in federal funds due to 
failure to comply with any State or federal requirements, the City will promptly repay such funds 
to the Arkansas State Highway and Transportation Department (AHTD). Further, I hereby 
authorize the Director of the Arkansas State Department of Finance and Administration to 
transfer such funds from the City's Motor Fuel Tax allotment to the AHTD's RRA Fund upon 
notification by the Director of Highways and Transportation that such funds are due AHTD and 
have not been paid by the City. 

Approval to proceed with advertisement of the project for bids is requested. 

Enclosures 

Sincerely, 

NAME & OFFICE 
(Sponsor's CEO) 

tfl 
"'f' 
~ 



Attachment G 

GillDELINES FOR ADVERTISING AND OPENING BIDS 
FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS 

Upon receipt of written authorization from the Arkansas State Highway and 
Transportation Department, the project may be advertised for bids. The following 
minimum guidelines for advertising must be met: 

• The minimum advertising period is three weeks. 

• In addition to meeting the State requirements for advertising for construction projects, the 
project must be advertised a minimum of two times in a statewide newspaper. 

• The notice must contain: (1) the time, date, and place that sealed bids are to be accepted, 
opened, and publicly read; (2) a brief description of the kind or type of work contemplated; 
and (3) the place at which prospective bidders may obtain plans and specifications. 

• The Sponsor will include the following language in the solicitation for bids: 

"The Sponsor hereby notifies all bidders that this contract is subject to applicable 
labor laws, non-discrimination provisions, wage rate laws and other federal laws 
including the Fair Labor Standards Acts of 1938. The Work Hours Act of 1962 
and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 also apply." 

• All bids received in accordance with the terms of the advertisement shall be publicly opened 
and at a minimum, the total amount bid must be read (the sponsor may choose to read the 
bids item by item). 

• If any bid received is not read aloud, the name of the bidder and the reason for not reading 
the bid aloud shall be publicly announced at the letting. 

• Negotiation with contractors during the period following the opening of bids and before 
the award of the contract shall not be permitted. 

"'f' 
"'f' 
~ 



Attachment H 

CERTIFICATION LETTER 
REQUESTING CONCURRENCE IN AWARD OF THE CONTRACT 

DATE 

Mr. Emanuel Banks 
Deputy Director and Chief Engineer 
Arkansas State Highway and Transportation Department 
P. 0. Box 2261 
Little Rock, AR 72203 

Dear Mr. Banks: 

Re: Job# 
Job Name 
County 

The following documents are submitted concerning the referenced project: 

1. One set of bid tabulations. 
2. A check in the amount of 1% of the low bid as the AHTD administration fee. 
3. Justification of award (if low bid amount is greater than 10% over the estimate). 

I certify that the referenced project was advertised and bids were received in accordance with the 
regulations governing Federal-aid projects and all other applicable state and federal regulations, 
and that this process has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney. Additionally, I 
certify that the bid is being awarded to the lowest responsive and qualified bidder and that there 
has not been, nor will there be, any negotiations with the contractor or other bidders regarding 
the amount bid. 

Your concurrence in the award of this contract to CONTRACTOR is requested. 

Sincerely, 

Sponsor 's CEO 

Sponsor's Attorney 
Enclosures 

'll 
~ 
~ 



Attachment I 

GUIDELINE FOR INSPECTION OF LOCALLY ADMINISTERED 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS FOR 

TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATES PROGRAM (TAP) PROJECTS AND 
RECREATIONAL TRAILS PROGRAM (RTP) PROJECTS 

Upon receipt of written concurrence from the Arkansas State Highway and Transportation 
Department in the award of the construction contract, the construction contract may be executed. 
The following minimum guidelines for inspection must be met: 

1) Project must be inspected by a Professional Engineer, Architect, or Landscape Architect 
registered to practice in the State of Arkansas. 

2) Project must be inspected using best practices for the type of work and the Sponsor is not 
required to use Department inspection procedures. 

3) Prior to beginning construction activities, the Sponsor must hold a pre-construction meeting 
and must invite the Department's Resident Engineer (RE) assigned to the project. At the 
meeting: 
a) The Sponsor will provide the RE two sets of plans and two copies of the construction 

contract. (One for RE's records and one to be sent to Program Management Division) 
b) The RE will provide a packet of posters and notices required by th~ FHWA-1273 

supplemental specifications. 

4) Submit the Construction Certification and Reimbursement Request (CCRR) form to theRE 
for review and handling. RE to check: 
a) Maximum federal funding available. 
b) Signed by Sponsor's ChiefElected Official (CEO). 
c) RE to review for math errors and compare to previously submitted CCRRs. 
d) Page 2 must be submitted. 
e) Copy of check(s) from the Sponsor to the Sponsor's Contractor and LPA Report(s) of 

Daily Worked Performed. 

5) Prior to implementing change orders, the Sponsor must submit fully executed change orders 
to the Department's RE for Department review and approval. The change order form must 
include: 
a) The Sponsor's CEO (or designated representative), Engineer/Architect's, and 

Contractor's signature. 
b) Description of the change and why the change was necessary. 
c) For unit price contracts, any changes in quantities. 
d) For new pay items, the pay item name, quantities, units, and unit price. 
e) Time extensions. 
f) All change orders must be reviewed and approved before beginning work except for 

reconciliation change orders at the end of the project. 
g) Reconciliation changes are required for project underruns greater than 20% and for all 

projects greater than 10% over. 

6) Upon completion of the Project: 
a) Submit a CCRR form showing the work completed as the final contract amount. 

i) This form must be submitted even if the Sponsor has been reimbursed 100% of the 
Federal-aid available for the Project. 

b) Hold a final acceptance meeting in which the Sponsor's engineer/architect, the designated 
full-time employee and the Department's RE must attend. 

c) Submit the LP A Final Acceptance Report form to the RE at the final acceptance meeting. "D ...,. 
~ 



P47 

CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATION AND REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST 

Job No.: ______________ _ 

FAP: ______________ _ 

County: ____________ __ _ 

Job Name.:---------- ------ -

SPONSOR'S REQUEST FOR PAYMEN~ 

1 Maximum Approved Federal-aid Amount 

2 Original Contract Amount 
3 Net Changes by Change Orders 
4 Present Contract Total 

5 Present Federal-aid Amount (80% of Line 4 
or Amount on Line 1, whichever is less) 

6 Work Completed to Date 

7 Federal Match (80% of Line 6 or amount 
on Line 5, whichever is less) 

8 Previous Reimbursements (Federal) 

9 Amount Due this Estimate 
(subtract Line 8 from Line 7) 

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY 

Total changes previously approved 

Total approved this Request Period 

TOTALS 

NET CHANGES by Change Order 
(Line 3 above) 

Payee/Sponsor: 
address 

Federal Tax ID No.: 

ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 

Revised: 12/19/13 

PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES ------- --------

DATE: ____ _ 

PAY REQUESH ___ _ 

FROM: TO: ------ -----

Designated Full Time Employee In Responsible Charg~ 

By: 

The information provided in this document is true and correct and I 
recommend that payment be made to the Contractor for this work. 

Date: --------------
Trt!e: ___________ _ 

Sponsor's CEQ 

Payment is requested from the Arkansas State Highway and 
Transportat:on Department for the Amount Due. I certify that the 

Contractor and/or subcontractor(s) are complying with the provisions 
of FHWA-1273, Required Contract Provisions, Federal-aid Construction 
Contracts, and Supplements; that the work has been completed by the 

Contractor in accordance with the plans and specifications; and that 
the Contractor has been paid for this work. 

By: __________ __ Date: 

Trtle: -------------

DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

Recommended for Payment in 
Accordance with Project Agreement 

Resident Engineer 

Approved for Payment 

State Construction Engineer 

PAID 

Voucher No.-----------

Date: 
Attachment J 



CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATION AND REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST Revised: 12/19f13 

II•H1'•111f.i"M41 -JOB NUMBER:~=====--------=========================-====================---===-----------~======~ 
PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGES 

FAP: 
JOB NAME:-----------

REQUESTNO: ______ DATE: _______ _ 

FROM: _____ _ TO: --------
SPONSOR: _ ______________ ___ CONTRACTOR: ________________ _ 

A B c D E F G H I 
WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS TOTAL % BALANCE 

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED PREVIOUS PRESENTLY COMPLETED& COMPLETED TO FINISH 
NO. VALUE REQUESTS THIS PERIOD STOCKPILED STOCKPILED (G +C) (C- G) 

(NOT INDorE) TO DATEJD+E+F) 

GRAND TOTALS 
Attachment J 

P48 



Attachment K 

Sponsor 
LPA Report of Daily Work Performed 

Job Name: _____________________________ _ Job No.: _______ _ 

FAP No.:--------- Contractor:--- ----------

Date: _ _ _ _ _ Hours Worked: --- Report No.: __ _ 

Project Conditions 

Site Conditions Weather 
Number of Contractor's 

Personnel 

Useable __ Sunny -- Laborers --
_ _ Partly Useable _ _ Partly Cloudy __ Carpenters 

Not Useable Rain Concrete Laborers 
- - - - - -

Min Temp. (F) __ Rainfall Amt. (in.) _ _ Equip. Operators 

Max Temp. (F) 
Comments Electricians - -

Plumbers - -

Foreman --
Other --

Other --

Location and Description of Work Performed 

Special Instructions and/or Conversations 

I -Signed: 
Designated Full-time Employee I 

C'\ 
~ 
~ 



Attachment L 

SPONSOR 
LP A Final Acceptance Report 

Job Name: J Date: 

Job No: FAPNo: 
. . 

County: Route: 

Contractor: 

Date Work Began: I Date Work Completed: 

Attendees: 

Remarks: 

Project Completed in Substantial Recommended for Acceptance in 
Compliance with Plans and Specifications Accordance with Project Agreement 

and Recommended for Final Acceptance by 
Sponsor 

Engineer/ Architect AHTD Resident Engineer 

Project Recommended for Acceptance 

Designated Full-time Employee: 

I certify that the Contractor and/or subcontractor(s) have complied with the provisions of 
FHWA-1273, Required Contract Provisions, Federal-aid Construction Contracts, and 
Supplements; that the project has been completed by the Contractor in accordance with 
the plans and specifications; that the Contractor has been paid for this work, and the 
project is hereby accepted. 

SPONSOR's CEO 

= I() 

~ 



Attachment M 

49 CFR 18.42 

UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS FOR GRANTS AND COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENTS TO STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS 

Post-Award Requirements 
Retention and access requirements for records. 

(a) Applicability. (1) This section applies to all 
financial and programmatic records, supporting 
documents, statistical records, and other records of 
grantees or subgrantees which are: 

(i) Required to be maintained by the terms of this 
part, program regulations or the grant agreement, or 

(ii) Otherwise reasonably considered as pertinent to 
program regulations or the grant agreement. 

(2) This section does not apply to records maintained 
by contractors or subcontractors. For a requirement to 
place a provision concerning records in certain kinds of 
contracts, see Sec. 18.36(i)(10). 

{b) Length of retention period. (1) Except as 
otherwise provided, records must be retained for three 
years from the starting date specified in paragraph (c) of 
this section. 

(2) If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other 
action involving the records has been started before the 
expiration of the 3-year period, the records must be 
retained until completion of the action and resolution of 
all issues which arise from it, or until the end of the 
regular 3-year period, whichever is later. 

(3) To avoid duplicate recordkeeping, awarding 
agencies may make special arrangements with grantees 
and subgrantees to retain any records which are 
continuously needed for joint use. The awarding agency 
will request transfer of records to its custody when it 
determines that the records possess long-term retention 
value. When the records are transferred to or maintained 
by the Federal agency, the 3-year retention requirement 
is not applicable to the grantee or subgrantee. 

(c) Starting date of retention period-(1) General. 
When grant support is continued or renewed at annual 
or other intervals, the retention period for the records of 
each funding period starts on the day the grantee or 
subgrantee submits to the awarding agency its single or 
last expenditure report for that period. However, if grant 
support is continued or renewed quarterly, the retention 
period for each year's records starts on the day the 
grantee submits its expenditure report for the last quarter 
of the Federal fiscal year. In all other cases, the retention 
period starts on the day the grantee submits its final 
expenditure report. If an expenditure report has been 
waived, the retention period starts on the day the report 
would have been due. 

(2) Real property and equipment records. The 
retention period for real property and equipment records 
starts from the date of the disposition or replacement or 
transfer at the direction of the awarding agency. 

(3) Records for income transactions after grant or 
subgrant support. In some cases grantees must report 
income after the period of grant support. Where there is 
such a requirement, the retention period for the records 
pertaining to the earning of the income starts from the 

end of the grantee's fiscal year in which the income is 
earned. 

(4) Indirect cost rate proposals, cost allocations 
plans, etc. This paragraph applies to the following types 
of documents, and their supporting records: indirect cost 
rate computations or proposals, cost allocation plans, 
and any similar accounting computations of the rate at 
which a particular group of costs is chargeable (such as 
computer usage chargeback rates or composite fringe 
benefit rates). 

(i) If submitted for negotiation. If the proposal, plan, 
or other computation is required to be submitted to the 
Federal Government (or to the grantee) to form the basis 
for negotiation of the rate, then the 3-year retention 
period for its supporting records starts from the date of 
such submission. 

(ii) If not submitted for negotiation. If the proposal, 
plan, or other computation is not required to be 
submitted to the Federal Government (or to the grantee) 
for negotiation purposes, then the 3-year retention 
period for the proposal plan, or computation and its 
supporting records starts from the end of the fiscal year 
(or other accounting period) covered by the proposal, 
plan, or other computation. 

(d) Substitution of microfilm. Copies made by 
microfilming, photocopying, or similar methods may be 
substituted for the original records. 

(e) Access to records--( 1) Records of grantees and 
subgrantees. The awarding agency and the Comptroller 
General of the United States, or any of their authorized 
representatives, shall have the right of access to any 
pertinent books, documents, papers, or other records of 
grantees and subgrantees which are pertinent to the 
grant, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, 
and transcripts. 

(2) Expiration of right of access. The right of access 
in this section must not be limited to the required 
retention period but shall last as long as the records are 
retained. 

(f) Restrictions on public access. The Federal 
Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. 552) does not 
apply to records unless required by Federal, State, or 
local law, grantees and subgrantees are not required to 
permit public access to their records. 

[Revised as of October I , 1997] 
~ 

In 
~ 



Attachment N 

CERTIFICATION FOR GRANTS, LOANS, AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS 

The undersigned certifies to the best of his knowledge and belief that: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of 
any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal ·contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement. 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with 
its instructions. 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in 
the award documents for all sub awards at all tiers (including sub grants, and 
contracts and subcontracts under grants, sub grants, loans and cooperative 
agreements) which exceed $100,000, and that all such sub recipients shall certify 
and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a 
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, 
Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each 
such failure. 

CITY OF 
SPRINGDALE 

Doug Sprouse 
Mayor 

M 
lf) 

~ 



Attachment 0 

Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) 

Reporting Requirements 

(For more information go to https:llwww.fsrs.gov/) 

FFATA was signed on September 26, 2006. The intent is to empower every American with 

the ability to hold the government accountable for each spending decision. The end result is to 

reduce wasteful spending in the government. The FFATA legislation requires information on 

federal awards (federal financial assistance and expenditures) be made available to the public via 

a single, searchable website, which is www.USASpending.gov. 

A Prime Grant Recipient (hereinafter called AHTD (the Arkansas State Highway and 

Transportation Department)) awarded a new Federal grant greater than or equal to $25,000 as of 

October 1, 2010 is subject to FFATA sub-award reporting requirements as outlined in the Office of 

Management and Budget guidance issued August 27, 2010. AHTD is required to file a FFATA 

sub-award report for any sub-grant awarded to a sub-awardee greater than or equal to 

$25,000. As a sub-awardee, shall 

provide the following information to AHTD in order to fulfill FFATA reporting requirements: 

.., A unique identifier {Dun & Bradstreet DUNS Number) of the sub-awardee receiving the 

award and the parent entity of the recipient, should the sub-awardee be owned by another 

entity; 

.., The names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated officers of the 

sub-awardee if the sub-awardee in the preceding Federal fiscal year received 80 percent 

or more of its annual gross revenues in Federal awards; and $25,000,000 or more in 

annual gross revenues from Federal awards; and the public does not have access to 

information about the compensation of the senior executives of the sub-awardee through 

periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

{15 U.S.C. 78m{a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. See 

FFATA § 2(b)(1). 

Page 1 of2 
f't) 
ll'l 
~ 



Attachment 0 

Required Sub-Awardee Information 

(A) Sub-Awardee- DUNS Number: _________ _ 

Parent (if applicable)- DUNS Number:--- -----~--·----------

(B) In the preceding completed Federal fiscal year, did your business or organization (the legal 
entity to which the DUNS number entered above belongs) receive (1) 80 percent or more of 
its annual gross revenues in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, 
and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from 
U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative 
agreements? 

Yes I No {Circle one) 

If "Yes" is selected, answer (C). 

(C) Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your 
business or organization (the legal entity to which the DUNS number entered above belongs) 
through periodic reports filed under section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a}, 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986? 

Yes I No (Circle one) 

If "Yes" is selected, visit http://www.sec.gov/edgar.shtml for reference. 

If "No" is selected, answer (D). 

(D) If "No" was selected in Question ucll I complete the following information for the five (5) 
most highly compensated executives in your business or organization (the legal entity to 
which the DUNS number entered above belongs). Amount should reflect the Total 
Compensation Amount in the preceding completed Federal fiscal year in U.S. whole dollars. 

Sub-Awardee Names and Compensation of Most Highly Compensated Officers 

1. Name: Amount:$ 

2. Name: Amount: $ 

3. Name: Amount:$ 

4. Name: Amount:$ 

5. Name: Amount:$ 

Page 2 of2 
"'I' 
Ill 
~ 



NORTHWEST ARKANSAS REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
1311 Clavlou St .. 5p. 1ngdale, Arkcmsas, 71762 
• (479) 75 1 11/'i :) Fa.:: : (479) 7S i 11 50 

Mayor Doug Sprouse 

City of Springdale 

201 Spring Street 

Springdale, AR 72764 

Re: Deans Trail Phase 1 
Construction Phase 

November 23, 2015 

FFY 2016 Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) 

Dear Mayor Sprouse: 

~ http:/ /•'IW"· p ! o · g 

RECEIVED NOV 3 0 2015 

1 am pleased to inform you the Deans Trail Phase 1 Project was selected by the Northwest Arkansas 

Regional Planning Commission on September 23, 2015 for FFY 2016 TAP funding. The TAP funds 

awarded and the required local match are shown below: 

TAP 
City Match 

Total 

$ZS5,199 
$ 63,800 

$318,999 

The TAP funding is subject to an obligation limitation and the total available funds may change after final 

FFY 2016 funding Is published. 

These funds are required to be obligated by the end of the Federal Fiscal Year which ends on September 

30, 2016. All required AHTD submittals and required approvals for this project should be completed by 

August 15, 2016 in order to allow sufficient time to obligate the TAP funds for this project. 

Please note that TAP projects " ... must comply with applicable provisions in Title 23, such as project 

agreements, authorization to proceed prior to incurring costs, prevailing wage rates (Davis-Bacon), 

competitive bidding, and other contracting requirements, regardless of whether the projects are located 

within the right-of-way of a Federal-aid highway." 

Please let us know if you have any questions or need additional information regarding this program. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
{Iff ~~wkins 
Director 

Cc: Mr. Paul Simms, AHTD 

(I) 
'I) 

~ 



RESOLUTION NO. 80·15 

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE WILLINGNESS OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS TO UTILIZE FEDERAL-AID TRANSPORTATION 
ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM (TAP) FUNDS ADMINISTERED BY THE 
NORTHWEST ARKANSAS REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF DEAN'S TRAIL PHASE 1 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale understands Federal-aid Transportation AlternatiVes 
Program Funds are available at 80% federal participation and 20% local math for construction 
of Dean's Trail Phase 1, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale understands that Federal-aid Funds are available for 
this project on a reimbursable basis, required wor1t to be accomplished and proof of payment 
prior to actual monetary reimbursement; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale understands that there will be no reimbursement for 
any work accomplished prior to the issuance by tha Arkansas Highway and Transportation 
Department of an official Notice to Proceed, and 

WHEREAS, this project, using federal funding, will be open and available for use by the 
general public and maintained by the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IF RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGDALE ARAKANSAS THAT: 

SECTION 1: The City of Springdale will participate in accordance with its designated 
responsibHity, including maintenance of this project. 

SECTION 2: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute al appropriate 
agreements and contracts necessary to expedite the construction of ttte above stated project. 

SECTION 3: That trail funds Identified in the Public Works Department Budget are 
hereby set aside to provide the required match. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 11" day of August, 2015. 

D~~-~ 
ATTEST: n 
_b~. r~ 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

~~~ 
Emest Cate, City Attomey 

\C 
ll') 

~ 



SPRINGDALE TRAIL DEVELOPMENT 
Summary March 2016 

SPRINGDALE 
WALTON CHAMBER DOWNTOWN ARKANSAS ILLINOIS RIVER SPRINGDALE 

FEDERAL FAMILY ANONYMOUS ENDEAVOR IGNITE SPRINGDALE GAME AND WATERSHED WATER CITY OF 

TOTAL PROJECT GRANT FOUNDATION DONOR FOUNDATION TYSON FOODS PROGRAM ALLIANCE FISH PARTNERSHIP UTiliTIES SPRINGDALE 
Razorback Greenway 

lake Fayetteville to Meadow $2,373,378.58 $1,898,702.86 $474,675.72 
Meadow Avenue to Lake Springdale $4,574,340.00 $3,659,4 72.00 $914,868.00 
Lake Springdale to Silent Grove Road $1,817,485.53 $1,453,988.42 $363,497.11 
Silent Grove Road to Goad Springs Road $718,693.64 $574,954.91 $143,738.73 
Reroute around Lake Springdale $88,491.63 $88,491.63 

lake Springdale Trailhead $600,000.00 $200,000.00 $350,000.00 $50,000.00 

Rabbit Foot lodge Wildlife Observation Trail $161,302.31 $100,000.00 $61,302.31 

Sanders Avenue Trailhead* $572,703.25 $400,000.00 $100,000.00 $72,703.25 
Shiloh Square Trailhead $1,395,481.20 $693,000.00 $100,000.00 $75,000.00 $2,585.00 $524,896.20 
Walter Turnbow Park Phase 1a 
Walter Turnbow Park Phase 1b* $2,000,000.00 $2,000,000.00 

Springdale Mountain Bike Trail* $1,641,602.00 $874,643.00 $501,254.00 $310,708.00 

Shiloh Trail $672,954.00 $538,363.20 $134,590.80 

Meadow Street Trail ' $151,000.00 $50,000.00 $78,713.00 

Dean's Trail Design $297,600.00 $297,600.00 
Dean's Trail Design Construction Phase 1* $255,199.00 $63,800.00 
Pride of Springdale Trail* $500,000.00 I $100,000.00 

$17,065,032.14 $8,775,481.40 $4,771,422.55 $100,000.00 $1,043,000.00 $100,000.00 $75,000.00 $2,585.00 $100,000.00 $50,000.00 $501,254.00 $1,569,005.19 
*Estimated costs--

*Noted: These projects are not completed or desianed and do not reflect total cost* 

P57 



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A WAIVER OF STREET 
IMPROVEMENTS, DRAINAGE, CURBS, GUITERS AND 
SIDEWALKS AS SET FORTH IN ORDINANCE NO. 3725 
TO RIGGINS CONSTRUCTION IN CONNECTION WITH 
6733 SUNSET RIDGE, A SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING 

WHEREAS, Ordinance #3047 provides for the waiver of street improvements, 
drainage relating thereto, curbs, gutters and sidewalks to be first heard by the Planning 
Commission and a recommendation made to the City Council, with any waivers to be 
granted by the City Council only; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a request for waiver of street 
improvements to including drainage improvements related thereto, sidewalks in 
connection with 6733 Sunset Ridge a single family dwelling for Riggins Construction 
and the Planning Commission recommends approval of the waiver request. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SPRINGDALE, that the City Council hereby: 

Option 1 : Grants a waiver of street improvements to Sunset Ridge including 
drainage Improvements related thereto, sidewalks in connection with 6733 Sunset 
Ridge, a single family dwelling for Riggins Construction. 

Option 2: Denies a waiver of street improvements to Sunset Ridge Including 
drainage improvements related thereto, sidewalks in connection with 6733 Sunset 
Ridge, a single family dwelling for Riggins Construction. 

Option 3: Approves payment in lieu of improvements to Sunset Ridge in 
connection with 6733 Sunset Ridge, a single family dwelling for Riggins Construction 
with estimated cost to be submitted by the developer's engineer for confirmation by the 
Planning Department. 

Option 4: Denies a waiver and allow a Bill of Assurance for a period not to 
exceed years for street improvements to Sunset Ridge including drainage 
improvements related thereto, sidewalks to be built in connection with 6733 Sunset 
Ridge, a single family dwelling for Riggins Construction. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF , 2016. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest Cate, City Attorney 

N:\Pianning\COMMISSION ITEMS\WAIVERS\Resolutlon-curbs, gutters, sidewalks and streetlights.doc 
00 
If) 

~ 



P59 

FILE NO. W16-07 
APPUCANT: RIGGINS CONSTRUCTION 

WAIVER REQUEST: SIDEWALK 

CITY OF SPRINGDALE 
PLANNING OFFICE 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
MARCH 1, 2016 



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE AT 
AS SET FORTH IN ORDINANCE NO. 4030 

WHEREAS, Ordinance #4030 amending Chapter 130 (Zoning Ordinance) of the 
Springdale Code of Ordinance provides that an application for a conditional use on 
appeal must be heard first by the Planning Commission and a recommendation made 
to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 1 , 2016, 
on a request by Sandra Hurd for a Use Unit 28 (Home Occupation) in a Low/Medium 
Density Single Family Residential District (SF-2). 

WHEREAS, following the public hearing the Planning Commission by a vote of o 
recommends that a conditional use be granted to with the following conditions - There 
shall be no increase in traffic or visitors to the subdivision. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SPRINGDALE, that the City Council hereby grants a conditional use to with 
the following conditions - There shall be no increase in traffic or visitors to the 
subdivision. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF , 2016. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 
ATIEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest Cate, City Attorney 

N:\Piannlng\COMMISSION ITEMS\CONDITIONAL USE\Conditlonal Use 2016\C16-02 Sandra Hurd\Resolution.doc 

= \Q 

~ 



1\ Feet w ~ A ;..oo A 8
2

~
0 

N 

• _ Public hearing sign posted: I I 2016 

• Public hearing sign posted by: CS 

FILE NO. C16-02 
APPUCANT: SANDRA HURD 

CONDITIONAL USE REQUEST: HOME OCCUPATION 

@ Public Hearing Sign Location 

CITY OF SPRINGDALE 
PLANNING OFFICE 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
MARCH 1, 2016 

19d 



ORDINANCE NO.-~ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 3307 THE SAME 
BEING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, AND THE PLAT PERTAINING 
THERETO BY REZONING CERTAIN LANDS FROM GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (C-2) TO THOROUGHFARE 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (C-5) AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY: 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, 
Washington County, gave notice required by law and set a hearing date of March 1, 
2016 for hearing the matter of a petition of Mancia Properties, LLC, David Mancia 
requesting that the following described tract of real estate be zoned from General 
Commercial District (C-2) to Thoroughfare Commercial District (C-5). 

Layman's Description: 701 N. Thompson 

Legal Description: A part of the SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of Section 36, 
Township 1a North, Range 30 West, Washington County, Arkansas, more 
particularly described as follows: Beginning at the SW corner of said SW 
1/4, NW 1/4 and run thence N 01° 02' W 440 feet; thence East 55 feet to 
the point of beginning, which point is on the East right-of-way of U.S. 
Highway 71 ; thence continue Northwardly along and with said right-of-way 
as follows: N 01° 02' W 246.42 feet; thence S ago 1a' W 5 feet; thence N 
01° 02' W 203.5a feet; thence leaving said Highway right-of-way and 
running N ago 18' E 343 feet to the West right-of-way line of Harris Street; 
thence S 01 o 02 E along said West right-of-way 450 feet to the North 
right-of-way line of Oak Street; thence S 89° 18'W along said North right
of-way to the East line of U.S. Highway No. 71 and the point of beginning. 

AND WHEREAS, after notice as required by law, the Springdale Planning 
Commission held a hearing and after hearing arguments for and against such rezoning, 
recommends to the Springdale City Council that the area described herein should be 
rezoned from General Commercial District (C-2) to Thoroughfare Commercial District 
(C-5) for the purposes of that Zoning Ordinance would be more properly carried out by 

such rezoning, and that unless granted, citizens of Springdale will suffer irreparable harm 
and damage, and will be substantially deprived of the use of their property. 

i 

M 
..,c 
~ 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS: 

SECTION 1: That Ordinance No. 3307, the Amendments thereto, and the Zoning 
Plat pertaining thereto of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, should be and the same is 
amended as follows: 

From General Commercial District (C-2) to Thoroughfare Commercial District 
(C-5). 

SECTION 2: That all ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3: EMERGENCY CLAUSE: It is hereby declared that an emergency exists 
and this ordinance, being necessary for the preservation of the health, safety and welfare 
of the citizens of Springdale, Arkansas, shall be in effect immediately upon its passage 
and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF , 2016 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATIEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest Cate, City Attorney 

2 

~ 
\C 
~ 



J\ Feet w ~A ;:oR 82~0 
N 

FILE NO. R16-07 
APPUCANT: MANCIA PROPERTIES/DAVID MANCIA 

REZONING REQUEST: C-2 TO C-5 

Public hearing sign posted: I I 2016 

Public hearing sign posted by: CS 

@ Public Hearing Sign location 

• • 

GTY OF SPRINGDALE 
PLANNING OFRCE 

PlANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
MARCH 1, 2016 

t9d 


	Tuesday, March 22nd, 2016
	6. Approval of Minutes
	9. ORD. Riviera Drive
	10. RESO. Support of bypass rename
	11a. RESO. Don Tyson Parkway
	11b. RESO. Contact Roadway Lighting Elm Springs Road Bridge
	12. RESO. Dean's Trail
	13a. RESO. App. Waiver 6733 Sunset Ridge
	13b. RESO. Conditional Use
	13c. ORD. Rezoning 701 N. Thompson



